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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate Commissioner

November 13, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House . ():j\e 5@&/( @
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 e

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to amend sole source contracts with the vendors
listed below to provide homeless shelter operations activities to assist homeless individuals
through the Emergency Solutions Grant program by increasing the price limitations by
$53,363.00 from $106,726.00 to $160,089.00, and by extending the completion dates from
December 31, 2014 to June 30, 2015, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. The original contracts were approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
March 26, 2014, (Item #28), April 9, 2014, (Item #43) and May 23, 2014 (item #35). The
source of funding is 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Vendor # Location Amount
Cross Roads House, Inc. (Greater 600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth & Seacoast Service Area) 166570 - BOOT Portsmouth, NH $51,255.00
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, 180 Lowell Road
Inc. (Greater Nashua Service Area) 159372 - BOOT Hudson, NH $13,869.00
The Bridge House, Inc. (Lakes Region, 260 Highland Street

Grafton Count-y & North Country 165288 - BO01 Plymouth, NH $45,093.00
Service Area)

The Salvation Army (Carey House)
(Greater Laconia & Lakes Region 177627 - BOO1
Service Area)

177 Union Avenue
Laconia, NH $49,872.00

Total $160,089.00

Funds to support this request are available in State Fiscal Year 2015 in the following
account with the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and to amend the
related terms of the contract through the Budget Office, if needed and justified, without further
approval from the Governor and Executive Council.
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05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING -
SHELTER PROGRAM

Please see attachment for fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this sole source request is to provide homeless shelter operations
activities to assist homeless individuals, and those threatened with immediate homelessness,
through the use of the Emergency Solutions Grant program. This request is for sole source
amendments because federal regulations require the vendor's names to be specified in
advance of the forthcoming grant awards. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development grant regulations specify that funds be obligated to vendors within sixty (60) days
of the Department receiving formal notification of the award amounts.

The Emergency Solutions Grant program supports those who are threatened with
immediate homelessness due to a housing crisis, and assists individuals and families in
quickly regaining stable housing after becoming homeless. This package includes the final
four of thirteen contract amendments and represents $160,089.00 of a total amount of
$683,854.50. Contractual obligations vary by vendor and location with these vendors utilizing
federal Emergency Solutions Grant matching funds for costs associated with homeless shelter
operations such as rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies. Approximately 4,200 individuals are
served annually by the Emergency Solutions Grant program statewide.

The Department has administered this program for twenty six (26) previous rounds of
federal funding. The thirteen (13) original contracts were awarded as the result of a
competitive bid process when the Department issued a Request for Proposals at the annual
New Hampshire Homeless Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October
24, 2012 and also posted the Request for Proposals on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ website.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless people may not be available in local
communities, resulting in a statewide increase in demand for these services placed upon the
local welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking
local shelter in places not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury
or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for shelter, health, education and treatment.
Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agencies would have to
close their doors or drastically reduce staff.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)
#14.231, Federal Agency U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of
Community Planning and Development, Emergency Solutions Grant Program.

In the event that Federal funds became no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

ioner

Approved by:
lcholas A Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FISCAL DETAILS, EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT PROGRAM, AMENDMENT # 1

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

Cross Roads House, Inc. (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

Page 1 of 1

Activit State Current Increase Revised
Account Class Title g;‘é'ey Fiscal | Modified | (Decrease) | Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306010 2014 | $17,085.00 $0 $17,085.00
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306010 2015 | $17,085.00 | $17,085.00 | $34,170.00
Total $51,255.00
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
Activi State Current Increase Revised
Account Class Title VY | Fiscal | Modified | (Decrease) | Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
102-500731 Contracts for 42306010 | 2014 | $4,623.00 $0 $4,623.00
Program Services
102-500731 | o Contracts for 42306010 | 2015 | $4,623.00 | $4,623.00 $9,246.00
rogram Services
Total $13,869.00
The Bridge House, Inc. (Vendor# 165288 - B001)
. State Current Increase Revised
Account Class Title Agg\é:y Fiscal | Modified | (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306010 2014 | $15,031.00 $0 $15,031.00
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306010 2015 | $15,031.00 | $15,031.00 $30,062.00
Total $45,093.00
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
Activit State Current Increase Revised
Account Class Title &;‘é'ey Fiscal Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306010 2014 | $16,624.00 $0 $16,624.00
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306010 2015 | $16,624.00 | $16,624.00 $33,248.00
Total $49,872.00
Grand Total | $160,089.00




Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment # 1 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment # 1) dated this 3rd day of October, 2014, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and Cross Roads House, Inc. (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business located
at 600 Lafayette Road, Portsmouth, NH 03801.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on April 9, 2014 (Item #43), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may at
its sole discretion, amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties upon
Governor and Executive Council Approval; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the end date of the contract, increase the price
limitation and change the payment terms; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

To amend as follows:
1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, to read:
05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731-42306010
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, to read:
June 30, 2015
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, to read:
$51,255.00

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency
Solutions Grant Program, and replace with Amendment # 1 Exhibit B, Method
and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency Solutions Grant Program.

CA/DHHS/100213
Cross Roads House, Inc.



Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

5. Delete Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Revised Exhibit C, Special
Provisions.

6. Delete Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions, and replace with Amendment
#1 Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions.

7. Delete Exhibit G, Certification Regarding The Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance With
Requirements Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-
Based Organizations and Whistleblower Protections.

CA/DHHS/100213
Cross Roads House, Inc.



Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

sl WP

Date _
Associate Lommissioner

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Csag Roads Jlovae, Tnc

10/25/7 Ao T ATV

Date Name: Martliss SHn e
Title:  Execufle 0OV

gfaistlog\;led%er}&} , County of ﬁooﬂ&n({xam on /O /98 f/"l ,

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified abbve, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

&\//@QT%/V—\

Name and Title of Notary or Justice’of tHé Peace

e T

[~ SUSAN D. DUCHESNEY ="}
Notary Pubtic, State of New Hampshire -

' My Commission Expires July 28, 20154

CA/DHHS/100213
Cross Roads House, Inc.



Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

\\‘M}\,“\ M

Date / Name: tigm A'&U

l Title: w&\ p?u
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/M00213
Cross Roads House, Inc.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY 2015 Not Applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

SFY 2014: not to exceed $17,085

SFY 2015 not to exceed $34,170

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $51,255

Total program amount: $51,255

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited

CA/DHHS/100213 . /f
Cross Roads House, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials _~~ =~
Page 10of 3 f f /.
Date 0 :75/ /7/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 5676, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the

CA/DHHS/100213
Cross Roads House, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
Page 2 of 3 B
Date /D { ‘6/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

Emergency Solutions Grant

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY 2014 and SFY 2015:

Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $51,255 $51,255
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $51,255 $51,255
TOTAL Federal+Match $102,510

CA/DHHS/100213

Cross Roads House, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials M
Page 3 of 3
Date ;Z’ 2 lg/ ;z 7/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

PECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
S
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials Ej/;;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmentai Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials 4%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials47k
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to ali contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Ini(ial@/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C ~ Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 - Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailabie.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 in the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with additional
general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $2,000,000; and

Amendment #1 Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials ; zg
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

Exhibit G - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials 2 rz g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: (A 055 ROCM(S h/du:da‘ Linc.

0/2g/,# 1 aits s

Date Name: pMarttia Stone
Title:  Execcchyve DiVedtD

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials /W-g
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State of Neto Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed March 24, 1982. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 17" day of September A.D. 2014

Zy Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
I 5 UZoanne |% ~e Sﬂff'?"e/ , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of Cross '% 05{% Hp MQ Fnc. .

(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly heldon 10 /93 l 14 -
'(Date') 4

RESOLVED: Thatthe EXxecu+iVe Direcior
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _Z Z%ayof Octobe — 20 /4

(Date Contract Signed)

4, Ma ~tHa S+ ne is the duly elected E)aec, wthive D )‘!‘-e_c/fz)(‘
{Name of Contract Signatory) (Titlgbf Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of ﬁO(‘j\t”—\@/f\'\

HA -
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ;78' day of Odﬁbﬂt 20 14,

]
),

(Notary Public/Jusfice of the Peace)

By Suzanne RDreftte
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

- e
Commission Expires: 7/ oY S

SUSAN D Dt "‘!4FSNEY .
Notary Pubie .. - -{ampshire
My COMMISSIn LxE4 =Y 28, 2015

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE {(MM/DD/YYYY)
3/3/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER DataRisk LLC SoNIACT
1 New Hampshire Avenue, Suite 120 PHONE ] FAX ]
Portsmouth, NH 03801 (ALC, N (603) 778-8985 {A/C, No): (603) 778-8987
ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
www.DataRisk.com INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED
Crossroads House, Inc
600 Lafayette Rd.
Portsmouth NH 03801-5435

INSURER B : First Comp

INSURERC :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19391895

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL]SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | / | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1112764 1/10/2014 | 1/10/2015 | EaCH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
l CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Eaoccurrence) | $ 1,000,000
MED EXP {Any one person) $ 20,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
POLICY Vi !:' Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 1,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1112764 1/10/2014 | 1/10/2015 | (& 5ccideny $ 1,000,000
Y/ | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
A ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
A ALLOY - SCHED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
v | HIRED AUTOS v AUTOS (Per accident}
$
A | / | UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR PHUBA44187 1/10/2014 | 1/10/2015 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
EXCESS LIAB GCLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
DED l | RETENTIONS $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION WC0102840-04 17102014 [1/10/2015 [ ,TEBER. T [OIF
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |:| NIA
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § 500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire .
Dept of Health & Human Services
Bureau of Homeless & Housing
129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Michael S. Daigle 'M { () Wd

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

CERT NO.: 19351895 Penny Zust 3/3/2014 5:47:12 AM Page 1 of 1

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

Mission Statement

At Cross Roads House:

We protect men, women and
children of the Greater Seacoast area
experiencing homelessness from
exposure and hunger.

We provide secure, transitional
shelter for those seeking to break the
cycle of homelessness.

We support individuals and
families by providing them with the
opportunity to move with dignity and
purpose to stable and decent housing.



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2014
with Summarized Financial Information
for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Sanders & Karcher
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Cross Roads House, Inc,

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Cross Roads
House, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2014 and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based upon our
audit. The June 30, 2013 financial statements were audited by us and in our report,

dated September 30, 2013, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cross Roads House, Inc. as of June 30,
2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

‘ganders & Karchjr

September 29, 2014




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Grants receivable
Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated
depreciation of $922,317 & $771,966, respectively

OTHER ASSETS
Closing costs, net of accumulated amortization
of $620 & $395, respectively
Unconditional promises to give, long-term
Marketable securities, long-term reserve
Beneficial interest in assets held by others
Cash and securities, operating reserve
Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred income
Long-term debt, current portion
Accrued payroll items
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, net ¢f current portion
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Designated
Undesignated
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2014 2013
$ 263,331 § 252,861
28,966 28,568
202,900 119,833
43,896 29,807
539,093 431,069
4,956,445 5,103,334
733 958
97,290 202,632
455,228 416,856
134,447 122,508
180,756 153,523
868,454 896,477
$ 6,363,992 $ 6,430,880
$ 19,118 § 22,543
8,400 -
12,980 10,575
39,863 39, 389
80, 361 72,507
239,122 251,375
319,483 323,882
635,984 570,379
5,005,788 5,153,271
268,290 260,840
134,447 122,508
6,044,509 6,106,998
§ 6,363,992 $ 6,430,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC,

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years ended June 30,

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES:

PUBLIC SUPPORT

Government grants

Donations

Other income

Fund raising, net of direct expenses of

$33,822 and $41,481, respectively

Total public support

REVENUES
Use of facilities
Investment return
Total revenues
Total public support and revenues

EXPENSES
Program services
General and administrative
Fundraising
Total expenses

DECREASE IN OPERATING NET ASSETS
BUILDING SUPPORT, net of change in discount
DECREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Public support

Restrictions satisfied by use

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED ASSETS

Investment revenue, net of fees
Distributions

INCREASE IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, Beginning of year

NET ASSETS, End of year

(
(
(

(

(

(

2014

251,767
421,012
4,838

299,978
977,585

5,600
43,739
49,339

1,026,934

789, 358
183,297

118,707
1,101,362

74,428)
7,450)

81,878)

267,370
259,920)

7,450

16,582

4,643)
11,938

62,489)
6,106,998

$ 6,044,509

2013

$ 257,344

390,406

279,311
927,061

7,200
6,484
13,684
940,745

746,045
191,336
148,774

1,086,155
{ 145,410)
96, 671

( 48,739)

445,845
( 349,174)

{ 96,671)

11,839

( 4,626)
7,213

( 138,197)
6,245,195

$ 5,106,998

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from support $ 930,328 833,621
Interest and dividends received 13,291 14,345
Cash received from use of facilities 5,600 7,200
Cash paid to employees and suppliers { 957,871) { 915,298)
Interest paid { 8,956) { 13,065)
Net cash used by operating activities ( 18,608) { 73,197)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net unrealized investment gain {loss) 42,387 { 648)
Cash paid for property and equipment { 3,462) -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 38,925 ( 648)

CASR FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for debt reduction ( 9,847) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash 10,470 { © 73,845)
Cash at beginning of year 252,861 326,706
CASH AT END OF YEAR 5 263,331 252,861

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets ${ 62,489)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:

Net unrealized investment (gain) loss { 42,387)
Depreciation expense 150,352
Amortization expense 225
{Increase) decrease in:
Grants receivable { 398)
Unconditional promises to give 22,275
Prepaid expenses { 14,090)
Beneficial interest in assets held by others { 11,939)
Cash and securities, operating reserve ( 27,233)
Marketable securities, long-term reserve ( 38,372)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable { 3,425)
Deferred income 8,400
Accrued payroll items 473
Total adjustments 43,881

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 18,608)

$( 138,197)

648
149,094
225

13,745

96,671
( 3,327)
( 7,213)
(  50,284)
( 146,359)

6,627

5,173
65,000

+( 13.197)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organjzation

Cross Roads House, Inc. (Cross Roads House), was organized March 24, 1982, but was
essentially activated January 1, 1984. The purpose of the organization is to provide
safe and supportive emergency and transitional shelter to individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in southeastern New Hampshire.

Basis of Accounting

Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income is
recognized as it is earned and expenses are reccgnized as they are incurred whether
or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accerdingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Cross Roads House received a letter of determination dated July 28, 1986 from the
Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualified as a non-profit organization
under Section 501(c) (3} of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore, it is not subject
to income tax, Cross Roads House is classified as other than a private foundation.

Financial Statement Presentation

Cross Roads House presents its financial statements in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification No. 958-210, *“Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Organizations”. Under ASC No. 958-210, Cross Roads House is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets,
and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, Cross Roads House is required to
present a statement of cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of these financial statements all non-custodial highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than three months or investments with a
per share value constant at one dollar are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents were $180,756 and $153,523 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from local communities for rent
and food. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on historical
experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable at the end
of each year., As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 management considers accounts receivable
to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required.




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC,
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 29, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Promises to Give/Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to Cross Roads
House that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire
in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-
restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction

expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets,

An allowance for uncollectible unconditional promises is established based on
historical experience and management’s evaluation of outstanding unconditional
pledges at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, management considers
all pledges to be fully collectible,

Unconditional promises to glve consisted of the following as of June 30,

2014 2013
Capital campaign $ 271,000 $ 271,708
Wentworth Gala event 31,900 61,625
TOTALS 5 302,900 $ 333,333

The fair value of promises to give that are due in more than one year is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using a current risk free rate of return based on
the yield of a U.S. Treasury security with a maturity date similar to the expected
collection period,

As of June 30, 2014, amounts were due in:

Less than one year $ 202,900
One to five years 100,000
Less discount to net present value 2,710

TOTAL $300,190




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC,.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Marketable Securities at Fair Value
Cross Roads House records its marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the statement

of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net
assets, in the statement of activities,

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at
fair value.

Common stocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities: Valued at the

closing price reported on the active market on which the ipdividual
securities are traded.

Mutual funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at
year end,

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not he
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore,
while the Organization believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different
fair value measurement at the reporting date.

Marketable securities at fair value as of June 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Common stocks 5 199,432
Cash mutual fund 356,718
Government bonds mutual fund 79,834
TOTALS $ 635!984

Property and Equipment .

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been purchased,
and at estimated fair market value for those items which have been donated. The cost
of buildings and improvements is recovered using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives of 10 to 33 years. The cost of furniture, fixtures and
equipment is recovered using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 2
to 7 years. Property and equipment as of June 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

Land and improvements ] 213,195
Buildings and improvements 5,595,949
Furniture and equipment €9,618
Total property and equipment 5,878,762
Less accumulated depreciation 922,317

Property and equipment, net $ 4,956,445




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE A -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributions

Cross Roads House records its contributions as unrestricted, temporarily restricted,

or permanently restricted support depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions,

Donated Services

Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation, For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, there were no
amounts for donated services,

Donated Materials
Donated marketable securities and property and equipment are valued at fair market
value. Marketable securities are immediately sold and are included in the statement of

activities as donations, Donated securities were received and valued as follows during
the years ended June 30,

2014 2013
Marketable securities $ 27,341 $ 18,064

Functional Allocation of ExXpenses
The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a

functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Organization’s investments as of June 30, 2014 are stated at fair value, Shares of
the separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent
the net value of shares held by the Organization at year-end. Purchases and sales of
securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. As of June 30, 2014,
investments have 3 market value of $635,984, cost basis of $601,696 and unrealized
gains of $34,288,

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS

Cross Roads House is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this fund,
property contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate
fund designated for the benefit of Cross Roads House., In accordance with its spending
policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the fund to Cross Roads House, The
distributions are 4.03% of the market value of the fund per year,




CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS (continued)

Activity in this endowment fund consisted of the following for the years ended June
30,

2014 2013
Beginning, fair value, 7/1 $ 122,508 § 115,295
Total return 17,386 12,648
Foundation fee { 804) { 809)
Distributions (__4,643) (__4,626)
Ending, fair value, 6/30 $ 134,447 $ 122,508

Distributions represent amounts distributed to Cross Roads House and are shown as
unrestricted dividends.

NOTE C - ACCRUED PAYROLL ITEMS

Accrued payroll items consisted of the following as of the years ended June 30,

2014 2013
Payroll and payroll taxes s 18,616 § 14,678
Earned time 21,247 24,711
Totals $ 39,863 $ 39,389

NOTE D - UNRESTRICTED BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Board of Directors of Cross Roads House has approved the following designations of
net assets as of June 30,

2014 2013
Long-term reserve $§ 455,228 $ 416,856
Operating reserve 180,756 153,523
Totals $ 635,984 $ 570,379

Board designated long-term reserve represents amounts held to enhance the
capitalization of Cross Roads House. Unrestricted board designated net assets may not
be liquidated or expended without the approval of the Board of Directors.

NOTE E - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets of $268,290 and $260,840 are available for the
capital campaign for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

-10-
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE F ~ CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by a bank
that was in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The uninsured amount was $23,245 and $32,552, respectively.

Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by an investment brokerage firm that is
insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation. There were no
uninsured amounts as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Cross Roads House derived approximately twenty-five per cent of its operating
revenue from government agencies.

NOTE G - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cross Roads House receives money under various state and federal grants. Under
the terms of these grants, Cross Roads House is required to use the money within
the grant period for purposes specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures of
the grant were found not to have been made in compliance with the proposal, Cross
Roads House may be required to repay the grantor's funds.

A discrimination claim was filed in February 2014 with the New Hampshire
Commission for Human Rights by a former resident. All charges have been denied
by management and management maintains that the allegatlions are without merit.

NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT

Current Long-term Total
Note payable, People’s United Bank, monthly
payment is $1,403, 3.92% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures June
2033, $ 8,171 § 216,692 § 224,863
Note payable, NH Community Development
Ruthority, monthly payment is $443, 2,00%
interest; secured by property; note matures
November 2019. 4,809 22,430 27,239
Total long-term debt $ 12,080 $ 239,122 $ 252,102

Future principal loan payments are as follows for the years ended,

June 30, 2015, . . ., . § 12,980
2016, . . « . . 13,403
2017, . . . . . 13,842
2018, . . . . . 14,294
2019, . . ., . . 14,764
Thereafter. . . 182,818
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Name Affiliation* Ho%ﬁ of Committees Term | Term
Residence Began | Ends
Ade, Richard Ocean Properties Ltd. |Rye Program 2011 2017
Allison, Tim UNH Portsmouth Development 2012 2016
Bresette, Suzanne Global Relief Executive, Development,
President Technologies North Hampton Personnel, Event 2007 2016
Brown, Bob
Vice President North Hampton Finance, Personnel 2011 2017
Blake, Jude Portsmouth Executive, Event 2010 2017
Cloutier, Denis CSNH New Castle Program 2012 2016
Cohen, Ken Psychiatrist Kensington Program 2013 2016
McLane, Graf, Finance, Nominating &
Dillon, Denis Raulerson & Middleton |Concord Governance, Development 2004 2015
Bank of Executive, Finance,
Drew, Kathryn America/Merrill Lynch [Rye Nominating & Governance 1999 2015
Hayden, Richard Nominating &
(Chick) Retired Rye Governance, Personnel 1996 2015
Martindale, Vivan Retired Hampton Personnel, Program 2006 2016
McCarthy, Jim
Treasurer Seascape Capital Rye Executive, Finance 2010 2016
Moore, Vanda JP Morgan Chase Bank
Secretary NA East Kingston Development 2013 2016
Executive, Finance,
Orion Seafood Nominating &
Scourby, Lex International, Inc. Portsmouth Governance, Development 2003 2015
Van Patten, David Dare Mighty Things  [Stratham Executive, Development 2007 2016
Mary Lee Worboys Durham Program 2011 2017




Martha E. Stone

EXPERIENCE

7/13 — present Executive Director, Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

1/04 —7/13

7/94-1/04

7/94-1/04

3/92-6/94

10/89-3/92

Chief executive of 96 bed not-for-profit homeless shelter. Oversee and manage annual budget
and shelter operations. Maintain relationships with state and municipal authorities, and ensure
regulatory compliance. Manage federal, state, municipal and private grant solicitations,
contract compliance, and reporting. Direct fundraising activities and supervise development
staff. Provide executive-level advocacy with medical, social service, and government
agencies.

Development Director, Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

Raise $600,000+ annually to support shelter operations. Responsible for planning and
implementing all fundraising activities including individual and corporate giving, direct mail
appeals, special events, corporate & foundation grants, and planned giving. Oversee volunteer
activities, donor database management, and gift processing. Plan and execute donor stewardship
activities and events. Design and produce marketing materials. Represent organization at
community events and manage public relations activities. Work closely with Board of Directors
to set and achieve fundraising goals. From 2007- 2009 managed a $5 million capital campaign to
fund the design and construction of a new shelter facility.

Co-Owner, Stone Signs & Designs, Portsmouth, NH

Manage all financial records including accounts payable and receivable; involved in strategic
planning and goal setting; created and maintained customer database.

Co-Owner and Property Manager, Stone Properties, Greenland, NH

Own and operate multiple residential and commercial properties in the Seacoast; maintain
financial records including accounts payable and receivable, schedule and coordinate all aspects
of maintenance for buildings, interview and process all tenant applications; handle tenant needs.

Marketing Manager, Healthsource, Concord, NH

Supervised staff of eleven; oversaw the servicing and retention of over 400 accounts by closely
monitoring all account renewal activities; created marketing strategies to increase annual
membership; designed and developed service program including manuals for client use; trained
new Account Managers in all aspects of the position including: negotiating, presentation skills,
and conflict resolution; regularly conducted presentations for clients explaining health benefits
and policy changes.

Marketing Representative, Healthsource, Concord, NH

Accountable for renewing and retaining 75 accounts; executed enrollment activities by:
gathering underwriting data, presenting benefit plans to both employers and employees in group
settings, and negotiating annual contracts; sold health insurance products to new employers.



3/89-10/89

5/87-3/89

EDUCATION

COMPUTER
SKILLS

VOLUNTEER

ACTIVITES

2/04- present
3/08-present
9/ 00-6/03
1998-99
1998-99

Marketing Representative, Beacon Health, Greenland, NH

Serviced existing accounts by coordinating enrollment activities including: developing annual
rates, conducting group presentations, and designing marketing materials; sold HMO product to
employer groups; actively participated in management team meetings; supervised administrative
assistant.

Marketing Assistant, Hardenburgh-Marks Inc., Boston, MA
Imported and marketed high end gift merchandise; supervised public relations activities;

designed and produced literature for new products; prepared for and traveled to trade shows;
sold directly to buyers; provided customer service to retail clients.

Bachelor of Arts, Communications: May 1987
Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA  Honors: Magna Cum Laude

Temple University, London, England
Spring Semester Abroad, Communications and Theater Program 1986

Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, Constant Contact, Raiser’s Edge fundraising software

School Board Member, Greenland Central School, Greenland, NH

Committee Member, Seacoast Half Marathon, Portsmouth, NH

President & VP, Greenland Central School Parent Organization, Greenland, NH
Co-Leader, Mothers & More, Portsmouth, NH

Fundraising & Hospitality Committees, Seacoast Parenting Conference, Portsmouth, NH
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Experience

Education

Honors &
Affiliations

Skills

References

Susan Darling Duchesney

2002-Current

Finance Director CrossRoads House

Manage accounting including payroll, government reporting and
audit preparation as well as human resources functions for major
seacoast nonprofit.

1996- Current: AA Associates Portsmouth, NH

Accounting Consultant

Manage small business accounting in various industries. Types of
businesses include construction, property management, restaurants,
athletic clubs, and personal service corporations.

Consult with clients regarding budgeting, corporate development,
general operations, and equity analysis.

Set up and provide technical assistance on Quickbooks systems.

Prior to 1996-
Fiscal Director of major nonprofit organizations
including North Shore Elder Services, Preterm Clinic, Manchester
VNA and the Seacoast YWCA. :

Adjunct Faculty at Seacoast Colleges including Granite State College
and Southern NH University

1991 Passed all parts of the CPA exam
2009 Graduate Certificate in Fraud Examination
2005 Southern New Hampshire University
"~ M.S. in Accounting
1990 Mcintosh College

A.A. in Accounting (3.9 average)
1973-1975 University of NH,
graduate work in business administration
1964 University of NH
B.A in History cum laude

CPA candidate(test passed, absence of public accounting experiénce)
Assaciate member of AICPA
Certified Fraud Examiner, Member of ACFE

Excel, Quickbooks, most accounting software and 1040 tax software

Available upon request



Relevant work

Daniel P. Mitchell

A rewarding and challenging opportunity to collaborate with others in positive ways.

. Extensive experience and qualifications with all aspects of the Profit and Non-Profit Career

job descriptions. A varied business background that includes necessary skills (hospitality,
personality, integrity, follow-through) to set and accomplish goals and targets.

Skills in Marketing, writing, accountability, development, and editing. A quick learner with
any new functions. Reliable and dependable and able to work within a team as well as
independently. Motivated and understanding of all business (non-profit or for-profit) aspects.

Director of Operations- Cross Roads House in Portsmouth, NH (10/11-Present)

Providing stability, growth, and management for a large shelter (96 beds) for families and singles
in a progressive non-profit agency. The training and supervision of all Direct Care, Maintenance, «
Kitchen staff, with collaboration of case managers for the homeless population of seacoast.

Program Director of Share, Inc. Homestead (Family Homeless Shelter) Vancouver, WA
(1/08-10/11) and Woman’s Shelter that housed 12 Women in two Homes

Director of Share, Inc. Children’s Hunger Initiative (5/11-10/11)

Providing stability, growth, and management for two family shelters in a $5.2 million non-profit
agency. The training and supervision of Case Managers for the homeless population. Director of
BackPack Program (1,000 each week during school year) and SummerSLAM (eight sites)

Executive Director Pemi Youth Center  Plymouth, NH (01/03 - 01/05)

Provided steady growth and stability to an emerging Main Street non-profit. (1/2 Time
Position) Grant writing, Program and Event Planning (along with Fundraisers) main focus.

Co-Director The Bridge House  Plymouth, NH  (01/03 — 01/0S)

Provided steady leadership, case work with residents, and transition to an independent shelter
(July 2004) after 15 years under Tri-County CAP. Worked with past “umbrella Board” and
newly formed local Board to help facilitate building of new shelter (completed May 2005)
with $700,000 Community Development Block Grant and partnered private ($300,000)
fundraising.

Admin. Coordinator Whole Village Family Resource Center NH (2001-2003)
Facilitated a collaborative of 17 health and social service agencies.

Responsible for all aspects of property management, marketing, development of future plans
(including vision of on-site future homeless shelter) and office functions.

AmeriCorps Member Newfound Area School District NH (1996-1997)
Worked with at-risk students in Newfound Area School District on a one-year contract.
Worked and led with varied groups on positive collaborative projects in the Community.

President/ Charter Member White Mountain Toastmasters NH (2002 - 2011)

Helped form new non-profit with twenty members; it grew to 44 members, with experience
as VP of Education, VP of Marketing, and mentor to others with learning public speaking
skills.
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Education

Personal
Achievement

Operations Manager Salem Children’s Trust & The Hunter School NH (2006)

A six-month contract to identify needed projects in two separate non-profits, research tasks,
and complete target goals. Oversaw eight departments that were “steadied” under operations
until grant funding for position ran out. All projects/ goals completed in a timely fashion.

Other Relevant Hospitality, Marketing, Business and Leadership Experience:
Retail Manager Sodexho Corporation @ Plymouth State University NH (2006-2007)

Owner/ GM Mitch’s Family (“Best NH Community 2005”) Restaurant (2005)
General Manager Village of Loon Mountain Lincoln, NH (1994-1996)
Owner/GM Olde Susannah’s Restaurant & Lounge NH (1983-1993)

Marketing Consultant: D.A.D. Enterprises (self-employed) NH (1997-2001)
Reporter/ Columnist Coos County Democrat  Lancaster, NH (1984-1993)

Other Non-Profit and Volunteer Experiences

“Project Homebound” Independently founded Project, which created a 100% donation base
for feeding area “in need” families (greater Lancaster, NH area) at Thanksgiving time. Worked
in collaboration with Community to serve the area needy, as a private businessman.

Project Homebound still continues and Celebrates 30 years in the North Country of NH this
Thanksgiving. (1984-2014)

1970-1981: Many volunteer activities, including Easter Seals Camp

1991: The Lynsey House in Lancaster, NH. Worked to identify and bring initial Directors to
help found the Lynsey House (northern NH homeless shelter), in collaboration with agencies
and other community members. Helped to initiate/ coordinate the “Adopt-A-Room” Program to
renovate the initial building.

1991-1993: Budget Committee for the Town of Lancaster

1994-2002: Baseball, softball, soccer, and basketball coach in Plymouth, NH.
1997-2001: Actor/ Marketing Educational Theatre Collaborative (ETC) Plymouth, NH.

2004- 2007 and 2012-2013: Actor  Little Church Theatre Holderness, NH
1985-1992: Board Member Waeathervane Theatre Whitefield, NH

2009-2010: Washington State Coalition for Homeless: Workshop (2-hour) Presenter

2011-current: Documentary Film Maker “Momentary Times” 4 months of traveling and
filming cross-country to highlight the issue of homelessness and solution-based ideas.

-Original Workshop two years-in-a-row “Hospitality, Humor, and Homelessness”

University of Oregon Business/ Psychology 1979-1981
Portland State University Business/ Marketing 1978
Mt. Hood Community College Business/ Marketing 1975-1977
Plymouth (NH) State University Community Development 2004

Single Father reared “the two Best children in the World” Andrew (26) and Darcy (24).

Both Andrew (May 2010 UNH and Masters Program 2014- Professor teaching UNH English) &
Darcy (2012 PSU and teaching Kindergarten students full time) are now successful and thriving
in Life.



SANDRA L. BEAUDRY
Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, NH #22

EDUCATION
Master of Science, December, 1992 Bachelor of Science, September, 1987
Marriage and Family Therapy Human Services
University of New Hampshire University of Southern New Hampshire

CLINICAL AND SOCIAL SERVICE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE

CROSS ROADS HOUSE
Portsmouth, NH January 2014 to present
Program Director
e Supervise Clinical Case Management program
» Responsible for enhancement of programming to support residents physical and emotional well-being and self-
sufficiency .
Establish inter-agency partnerships
« Seek diverse funding, including government and private grants and the provision of reimbursable services
Identify and meet direct and clinical service staff training needs

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES
Manchester, Concord, Portsmouth, NH . February 1997 to January 2014
Program Director October 2008 to January 2014
Program Leadership and Supervision
+ Directed statewide counseling and adolescent/young aduit substance abuse treatment programs and a federally-
funded mentoring/family support program for youth being released from the Sununu Youth Services Center (joint
project with Goodwill of NNE)
e Supervised 14 direct report clinical staff and two interns
Supported implementation of Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy and trauma-informed care
Provided supervision and clinical support to the Seacoast Street Outreach Program mental health clinician and
oversaw the mental health subcontract with the Healthcare for the Homeless program at Families First
+ Developed and maintain procedure manuals for counseling and substance abuse treatment programs
e Oversaw quality assurance of clinical records and implementation of evidence-based practices
e Developed, monitored and maintained program budgets that have ranged from a total of $1 million to $1.4 mllllon
annually
o Supervised and coordinated the statewide CFS Deployment Cycle Support Program, which provided home-based
counseling and support to military service members and thelr families before, during, and after deployment,
through a subcontract with Easter Seals
o Directed the Family Intervention Program, state-contracted barrier-resolution services for TANF recipients in the
New Hampshire Employment Program across the state, including four sub-contracts with Family Resource
Centers
« Provided administrative and clinical support to Healthy Marriage Responsible Fatherhood federal grant project
serving fathers in the state prison system and their families
Grants and Contracts
¢ Managed or co-managed four multi-year federal grants from SAMHSA, OJJDP, and ACF, including data
collection and reporting, continuation applications, annual progress reports, and no-cost extension requests
+» Managed state contracts with BDAS, DOC, and DFA, including proposal writing and submission, data collection
and reporting, and budget development
¢ Wrote or contributed to grant proposals to foundations, including grants received from Peoples United Bank for
Seacoast office-based family counseling and Healthcare Gives for mobile mental health services in the Street
Outreach Program
o Developed proposals and received funding from United Way agencies across the state
e Wrote proposals to municipalities, including the city of Portsmouth, and presented to town selectman or budget
meetings :
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* Facilitated agency contracts with managed care companies for counseling and substance abuse
treatment services and the credentialing of CFS clinical staff
* Provided the CFS agency administrator function for WITS, the web-based treatment, data, pay-for-performance,
and billing center for Access to Recovery and BDAS treatment contracts

Board and Community Involvement

o Served as the staff liaison to the CFS Seacoast Regional Advisory Board, facilitating monthly meetings and their
work in fundraising, including the RiverWoods Gala and the Lonza golf tournament

» Facilitated a multi-disciplinary advisory board for the CFS Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment program with
representatives from prevention, treatment, school and juvenile justice service providers

* Represented CFS on the following boards: New Hampshire Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers
Association, Health First (Laconia and Franklin), and Community Resource Network (Seacoast)

e Serve as Board Secretary and Conference Registrar for the New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health

¢ Arranged professional conferences in ethics and motivational interviewing for CFS and community clinical/social

work staff
Program Manager June 2007 to October 2008
Managed Family Intervention Program
Marriage and Family Therapist February 1997 to June

2007

Provided assessment and psychotherapy services to individuals, couples and families in a variety of Seacoast area
settings, including community-based therapy to individuals and families experiencing homelessness or housing insecurity
in conjunction with the Healthcare for the Homeless program, consultation to Community Child Care Center, and critical
incident response with the state Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team. Served on the board of SeaCare Health
Services for nine years as the mental health representative.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS

Rochester, NH

Home-Based Clinician May 1992 to February
1997

Provided home-based family therapy, case management, and provider consultation services to multi-problem families in
Strafford County. Taught Child Impact seminar for divorcing parents.

RESIDENTIAL AND CASE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Service Coordinator October 1988 to August 1991
Provided service coordination and individual support to developmentally disabled adults and their families.

Merrimack Valley Case Management Team, Mass. Dept. of Mental Retardation, Haverhill, MA

Case Manager April 1987 to September 1988
Obtained and coordinated community services for developmentaily disabled adults.

One Sky, Portsmouth, NH

Coordinator of Community Residences December 1984 to April 1987
Supervised the operation of four licensed community residences for developmentally disabled adults
Group Home Coordinator February 1983 to December 1984

Established and managed group home for four deinstitutionalized men.
Sullivan County Developmental Services, Claremont, NH

Assistant Residential Program Supervisor March 1982 to January 1983
ACCESS, Conshohocken, PA
Resident Manager November 1980 to March 1982

River Crest Center, Mont Clare, PA

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP AND EDUCATION

Clinical Member and Approved Supervisor, American Association of Marriage and Family Therapy

Adjunct Professor January 2013 to present
Spring Semester Marriage and Family Therapy Graduate Practicum, University of New Hampshire
Teaching Assistant September 1991 to May 1992

Introduction to Human Development course, University of New Hampshire
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Contractor Name: Cross Roads House, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Martha Stone Executive Director $75,000 0 0

Susan Duchesney Finance Director $32,500 0 0

Daniel Mitchell Operations Director $42,500 0 0

Sandra Beaudry Program Director $60,000 0 0




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Fax: 603-271-6139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

qaltt

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Mary Ann Cooney

Associate
Commissioner

March 25, 2014
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the
vendors listed below to provide homeless shelter operations activities to assist homeless
individuals through the Emergency Solutions Grant program in an amount not to exceed
$175,841 retroactive to January 1, 2014 upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
through December 31, 2014.

Vendor x endor Location Total
umber

Cross Roads House, Inc. 166570 — BOO1 Portsmouth $34,170
My Friend’s Place 156274 - BOO1 Dover $36,560
The Salvation Army (Carey House) 177627 - BOO1 Laconia $33,248
The Salvation Army (McKenna House) 177627 — BO0O3 Concord $39,351
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. | 177195 - BO09 Berlin $32,512

Total $175,841

Funds are available in the following accounts with the ability to adjust encumbrances in
each of the State Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING -
SHELTER PROGRAM

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the grant term is based on a calendar year,
however the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has not yet issued the
notice of grant awards for this contract. The New Hampshire Consolidated Plan stipulates that
contractual funding coincide with the current grant calendar year. The U.S. Department of
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Housing and Urban Development grant regulations stipulate that funds be obligated to vendors
within 60 days of the Department receiving formal notification of the award amounts.

This package includes 5 of 14 retroactive agreements and represents $175,841 of a
total of $469,735 anticipated to be available to assure compliance with U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development requirements. The Council has already approved seven of
the 14 contracts and two more will be brought forward at a later meeting. These agreements
allocate a portion of the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
funds, formerly known as the Stewart B. McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program funds,
provided to New Hampshire by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Four of the vendors will utiize Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act and matching funds pursuant to their agreements for homeless shelter operations
activities that include costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies. Additionally, Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. will utilize some funds for prevention/intervention
services such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with foreclosure notice, utilities with
disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent homelessness. Such activities help negate
instances where households are threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated that
these contractors will serve approximately 4,200 individuals statewide.

The Department has administered this program for 26 previous rounds of federal
funding. A Request for Proposal was issued at the annual New Hampshire Homeless Provider
and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012 and posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services’ website. The Request for Proposal required
potential bidders submit proposals for funding for state fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Funding is
awarded based on anticipated federal funding. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development historically announces funding levels in the late spring. The Department has not
yet been notified of the funding amounts available for state fiscal year 2015. However, the
Department executed contracts for anticipated funding so that when the federal funds do
become available, vendor access to the funds will allow continuation of services to homeless
individuals without interruption.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project; use of outcome/performance measures and
outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; local service delivery area
coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach; accurate and timely utilization of
Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance with
rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity, and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to
submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models
to be evaluated independently. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50
required for funding. (Please see the attached Scoring and Financial detail for additional
information). '

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:
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1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers,
including various demographic information reports, as well as income and expense reports,
including match dollars.

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be
required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System will be the
primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded
through these contracts.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless people may not be available in local
communities, resulting in a statewide increase in demand for these services on the local
welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local
shelter in places not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities.
This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and
will be cut off from basic supports for shelter, health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs
would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agencies would have to close their doors
or drastically reduce staff.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of funds: 100% Federal

In the event that Federal funds became no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

et [/
ommissi O
Approved b% - \9\&( /

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

The Bridge House, Inc. (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $15,031
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $15,031
Sub-total $30,062

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,085
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,085
Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $6,916
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $6,916
Sub-total $13,832
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,982
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,982
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,052.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $9,052.50
B Sub-total $18,105
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
d/b/a Anne-Marie House
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $4,623
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $4,623
Sub-total $9,246




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,767
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,767
Sub-total $41,534
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,280
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $18,280
Sub-total $36,560
Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $21,278.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $21,278.50
Sub-total $42,557
New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,659.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,659.50
Sub-total $41,319
The Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $19,675.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $19,675.50
N Sub-total $39,351
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,624
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,624
Sub-total $33,248




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,637.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $30,637.50
Sub-total $61,275
Tri-County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,256
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,256
Sub-total $32,512
Total

$469,735 |




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The
Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ website.

Evaluation HMIS otal
Shelter Programs Score Utilization Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont  180.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
(HEARTH), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since HEARTH
funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget, proposals
that qualified for HEARTH funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for
funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposals received, the reviewers were organized
into twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and
scores. The review committee teams included the following individuals:

¢ Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human
Services Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a
Community Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery
Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State
Continuum of Care

e Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner |, Office of Consumer and Family
Affairs, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Division of Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD
Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator,
American Friends Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Heaith,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy
Unit, Division of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
Attorney General’'s Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human
Potential, formerly Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department
of Corrections

Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families,
NH Department of Health and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein,- Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Developmental Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



e Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug
and Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the
Homeless Program

e Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for
PeaceWorks New Hampshire, LLC

e Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH
Department of Corrections

e Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

e Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

e Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator IV, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

o Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human
Service Director, Town of Salem

HEARTH funds were awarded to the Operations budgets of emergency
homeless shelter programs to meet federal requirements for the utilization of
these funds. In order to assure that HEARTH funds were available to all
programs providing emergency shelter, the following formula was utilized:

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars; and

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of
the Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars.



Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

Cross Roads House, Inc.

1.4  Contractor Address

600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number

(603) 436-2218 010-042-7927-102-0731

1.7  Completion Date 1.8

December 31,2014 $34,170.00

Price Limitation

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Hq{‘"f‘ha\ D fone, Execuf/

~

ve

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of N &, County of ((40 )’\JQ/KQ\/V‘\_

aé 830?1 the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signajure mgn Duuum the Peace.
Notary Public, State of New Hampshirg o

My Commission Expires July 28, 2018

[Seal}

“(LJ)’VDD’L@&O%

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

SUSAN D D\)d’?egpe% R

t\‘»mﬁ«Q

1.14 State Agency Signature

1.15 Name and Tltle State Agency Signatery
MM/"/ OE,
AES‘@ oC ,,{Lc@ C()»fu,wcﬁi‘/c‘\g,\

1.16 Appr;ﬁal by e N H. D artmefit of Administratio

n, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: ﬁ?s /)/\LL;L On: 3,)1/- '
1.18 Approval by the Gdvernor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
faws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 [f this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor lnitials:%‘ -



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™);

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice unti! such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “‘data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approva!l of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resuiting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shali
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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centificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor lnitiam&



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1 Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith,

2.3 The Contractor shall pursue any and ail appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

2.4 The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

2.5 All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

2.6 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:
Contracior Imm

CA/DHHS/100213 Extubit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits,

& Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A -
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $34,170.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $34,170.00

Total program amount: $34,170.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptrolier General of the United States.

CAJDHHS/100213 Exhion B Contractor lnibals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials a&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $34,170.00 $34,170.00
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $34,170.00 $34,170.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $68,340.00
CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit 8 Contractor inibals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as weli as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials %
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Inilials%
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the foliowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revacation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor lnitials%&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availabitity of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2 Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: ( roSS '2040/‘3 HOUJ-Q, Tnc .,

2 [25])14 VVigud Lo s

Date Name:

Tl Zxegcchire DIVectr™_
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Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment # 1 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment # 1”) dated this 3rd day of October, 2014, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of
business located at 180 Lowell Road, Hudson, NH 03051.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on May 23, 2014 (ltem #35), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may at
its sole discretion, amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties upon
Governor and Executive Council Approval; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the end date of the contract, increase the price
limitation and change the payment terms; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

To amend as follows:
‘1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, to read:
05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731-42306010
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, to read:
June 30, 2015
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, to read:
$13,869

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency
Solutions Grant Program, and replace with Amendment # 1 Exhibit B, Method
and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency Solutions Grant Program.

CA/DHHS/100213
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc.



Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

5. Delete Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Revised Exhibit C, Special
Provisions.

6. Delete Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions, and replace with Amendment
#1 Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions.

7. Delete Exhibit G, Certification Regarding The Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance With
Requirements Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-
Based Organizations and Whistleblower Protections.

CA/DHHS/100213
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Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

//// 2 /r/

Date

AssociatT Commissioner

N

Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc.

I ek 2014

Date s J bom
Titte: President | Boadd N Tstee.

Acknowledgement:
State of NH , County of H\“&bN*L on

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

30@'\’\(\
s

‘\\ *
Oypne C AMANCL  £57 M on
: S$3¢ cOMMISSION %

Name ; Z(yd Title of Notary ér Justice of the Peace Expmezso ]7
APRIL 18, :

i
o
L)
.0\\
%
1,
mm

2:C
08
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Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date\\ {\’LU\ L/ \U\ Nﬁ% /
Title: ( ’

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY 2015 Not Applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

SFY 2014: not to exceed $4,623

SFY 2015 not to exceed $9,246

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $13,869
Total program amount: $13,869

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials L/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials IQ L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant

Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior

written authorization from the State.

Emergency Solutions Grant

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY 2014 and SFY 2015:

Federal

EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $13,869 $13,869
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies

TOTALS $13,869 $13,869
TOTAL Federal+Match s27,738 [
CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Iniﬁalszd L
Page3of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Revised Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials &IL
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Revised ExhibitC

7.3.

Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ali
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regutations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

8.1.

8.2

8.3.
9.

9.1.

9.2.
10.
06127114
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Revised Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Pian (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials QJ_L__

06127114 Page 3 of Datem
70-14-1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOQOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resuiting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Controf and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contracter Eirployee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor empioyee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the Nationa! Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

{(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials L' l .
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials QL
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 - Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legisiative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pitot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

Exhibit G —~ Certification Regarding Contractor Initials &J L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Fam;‘sé Prowise o f ére:d-lr PJKS ku&/jﬁ,\c,

10 - Jlp - 1 /@EQAJM“

Date Name: Redecka } Livbbakica
Tltle:'P“_ﬁM' ‘Bo« ..l 4 ‘ﬁ*ustl-bs

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials&l L

The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance
6127114 Page 2 of 2 Date lD‘lQ‘IV



State of Nefo Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation formed January 26, 2001. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3 day of April A.D. 2014

ey Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

] Aot Qona %ﬂ yi , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected/Officer &f tHe Agency; cannot be contract signatory)
1. I am a duly elected Officer of EAm.'lﬁ E pamise oF &SRealee pshas o1 AnneMarie Howsos
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __A u?ﬁi € 20/3
(Date)
RESOLVED: Thatthe __ Pres.de ,,;5’4 Chaicmon Pelessn Livhaliga
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the Ji dayof OBcetober 2014
(Date Contract Signed)

4. _Rebeceon LivbpKKa is the duly elected csideal oF Bose [Rusgfees
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

(Signature &f the Eledted(Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of mujh)wak

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ /& day of @d&l , 2044

By .
(Name/bf Elect ficer of the Agency)

(

. QUL T)
(NOTARY SEAL) \\\\\\\0\‘\.\ S L‘%%
s\\% k."‘.-k un,..’Q /,,,,

X . -,
- s .‘ My "012
Commission Expires: ] lg” 2 5? CoMMIBSION 1S

)

1, TAM
MW

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 11/20/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONIACT Fajrley Kenneally
E & S Insurance Services LLC PHONE . (603)293-2791 (AIG, Noy; (603)293-7188
21 Meadowbrook Lane ADDREss: fairley@esinsurance. com
P O Box 7425 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gilford NH 03247-7425 iNsurRer A:Philadelphia Insurance Co
INSURED INSURERB :
Family Promise of Greater Nashua , Inc. INSURER C :
180 Lowell Road INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Hudson NH 03051 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:2014 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDIT!ION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDU CED BY PAID CLAIMS.

NSR ADDL|SUBR POLICY EFF ] POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR |WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DB/YYYY) | (MMDD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
A CLAIMS-MADE [z, OCCUR PHPK1237620 [10/31/201410/31/2015| \ep Exp (Any one person) | § 5,000
- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY [ $ 1,000,000
_— GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
X [ PoLicy [ RO LOC _ $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (£ secdent 5
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
™ ALLOWNED SCHEDULED -
ALY SorED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
1 NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I [ RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION ] WC STATU- l OTr
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TS ER.
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DES CRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

State of NH Dept of Health & Human Serv.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
F Kenneally/FAIRLE "—‘\a,\.\,@@ Hmml;a_.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

INSO025 ont1008) a1 Tha ACORN nama and lnnn ara ranictarad marke of ACORN




l (]
ACORD
u

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDODVYYYY)
4/3/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER CONTACT Cathy Casale

The Holt Agency PHONE = (603)673~1201 Im“o:)sn-cazs
Mathyc@HMnsurance .com

633 Elm Street INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Milford NH 03055-0009 insurer A The Keating Group

INSURED INSURER B :

Family Promise of Greater Nashua Inc INSURER C :

180 Lowell Road INSURER D :
INSURERE :

Hudson NH 03051 INSURER £ :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBERCL144307806 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADOULTSUBR]

POLICY EXP

POLICY EFF
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSRWvD | POLICY NUMBER MM/D! {MWDDIYYYY) LIMTS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s
"DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
! CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP {Any one person) $
| PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | $
|| GENERAL AGGREGATE $
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | §
POLICY PRS- Loc s
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY cgmameo )SINGLE T
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ﬁl.ul_.r ggwso iﬁr%gun.so BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
1 NON-OWNED "PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS | (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
DED ] ] RETENTION § $
A | WORKERS COMPENSATION | WC STATD. | ]og;.
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
APF{Y gggzg;&nﬁ&gsg};ﬁecunvs NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000
OFFI
(Mandatory In NH) [co106984 3/13/2014 [3/13/2015 || pisEASE - EA EMPLOYER § 100,000
08, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY UIMIT | § 500,000

Proof of coverage in place

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS ! VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH-DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORLZED REPRESENTATIVE

Cruaade
Cathy Casale/CASALE a"“ﬁ‘

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSO02S 501008 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACORND nama and lnan ara ranietarad marke nf ACORN




[
Qa Greater Nashua 180 Lowc” Koad
() |nterfaith Hospx’ta“tg fHudson, NH 03051

()
' Network at Tel: 603-883-7338
. ‘ ’ Anne-Marie House Fax: 603-883-8335
QUR VISION

To eliminate homelessness - one family at a time.

OUR VALUES
Hospitality -- We welcome the stranger and embrace them as family.

Faith -- We live out our faith in relationships, to make a positive difference in the
lives of others. We promote interfaith collaboration as a means to deliver the largest

possible benefit.

Respect for Every Person and Family -- We believe in the inherent worth of each
person and family — their individual faith, their privacy, their dignity, and their
potential for positive growth. We embrace the socioeconomic, cultural, and racial
diversity of our guest families, of our staff and of our volunteers.

Individual Responsibility — We emphasize the importance of individual
responsibility by all guests, staff and volunteers, to promote a safe environment and

healthy behaviors.

Learning -- We believe the success of our program is completely dependent on
continual listening and learning from each other and from outside sources.

UR MISSI

To support the needs of families experiencing homelessness as they work to achieve
sustainable income, housing and transportation.

ACommunit Response to Familics [ xperiencin Homclcssncss
Y P P i



et Deparuent of the Treasur
gm IRS lnl%:n:l Reveuue Strvluy

15318

P.0. Box 2508, Room 4010 In reply refer to: 4077550279
Cincinnati OH 45201 Apr. 17, 2013 LTR 6168C 0
02-0528837 000000 0O
00039468
BODC: TE

FAMILY PROMISE DF GREATER NASHUA .

INC ’ i

GREA

%X ROBERT MARKS

180 LOWELL RD e

HUDSON NH 03051-64907 -

Employer Identification Number: 02-0528837
Person to Contact: ‘Sophia Brown
Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpayer:

This is in response to your Feb. 01, 2013, request for information
regarding your tax-exempt status.

Our records indicate that you were recognized as exempt under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination

letter issued in September 2002.

Our records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are described in

section 509(a)(2).

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or
for your use are deductlble for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and

2622 of the Code.

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for information regarding
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(j) of the Code
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three
consecutive years results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of
the filing due date of the third return for orpanizations required to
fila. We will publish a 1list of organizations whose tax-exempt

status was revoked under section 6033(j) of the Code on our website

beginning in early 2011.



FAMILY PROMISE OF GREATER NASHUA, INC.
Statement of Activities

For the Yéar Ended December 31, 2012
{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)

Totals
Temporarily 2012 2011
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Support and Revenue:
Contributions $ 188,464 $ 47,159 $ 235,623 $ 270,978
Special events, net 104,661 - 104,661 88,740
In kind donations 1,615 - 1,615 -
Interest income 15 - - 15 113
Miscellaneous income - - - 3
Net assets released from restriction 64,532 {64,532) - -
Total Support and Revenue - 359,287 - (17,373) 341,914 359,834
Expenses:
Program services 207,797 - 207,797 202,055
General and administrative 56,147 - 56,147 52,231
Fundraising 69,127 - 69,127 61,607
Total Expenses 333,071 - 333,071 315,893
Change in Net Assets 26,216 (17,373) 8,843 43,941
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 54,087 64,140 118,227 74,286
Net Assets, End of Year $ 80,303 $ 46,767 $ 127,070 $ 118,227

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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FAMILY PROMISE OF GREATER NASHUA, INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)

N
(e
g
N
N
o
—_
—

|
|

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 8,843 $ 43,941
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation 6,885 4,958
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable (78) (155)
Prepaid expenses (124) 327
increase (Decrease) In: -
Accounts payable 3,715 (8,038)
Accrued expenses (2,046) 583
Other liabilities 9,810 (1,005)
Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 27,005 40,611

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale of investments - 15,850
Purchase of fixed assets (21,025) {1,310)
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities (21,025) 14,540

Net Increase 5,980 55,151
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 109,218 54,»067
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 115,198 $ 109,218

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



FAMILY PROMISE OF GREATER NASHUA, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Organization

Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (the Organization), is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation. Located in Hudson, New Hampshire, the
Organization is a collaborative effort of religious congregations, social service
agencies and community volunteers that provide emergency transitional
housing, meals, and supportive services to homeless families within Hudson,
New Hampshire and surrounding communities.

The Organization operates under the name of Family Promise of Greater
Nashua at Anne-Marie House.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Organiza-
tion used in preparing and presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Con-
tributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organization is
required to distinguish between contributions that increase permanently
restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and unrestricted net
assets. It also requires recognition of contributions, including contributed
services, meeting certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards
establish standards for financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and
require a Statement of Financial Position, a Statement of Activities, a State-
ment of Cash Flows, and a Statement of Functional Expenses.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment of
cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.



Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period
in which the revenue is recognized. Ali other donor-restricted contributions

are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. VWhen a restriction expires, tem-
porarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Functional Expenses e

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summa-
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the Statement
of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volun-
teers assisting the Organization in its programs. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria
for recognition of such volunteer effort under generally accepted accounting
principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.



Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization

" described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been ciassified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax retum. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
income Tax) for 2011, 2010, and 2009 are subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after they were filed.

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Organization had no interest
or penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
organization's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011,
from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.



Subseguent Events

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent Events,
events and transactions from January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2013, the date
the financial statements were available to be issued, have been evaluated by
management for disclosure. Management has determined that there were no
material events that would require disclosure in the Organization’s financial
statements through this date.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institutions
was $115,198 and $109,218 at December 31, 2012 and 2011. The difference
between the carrying amount and the bank balance represents reconciling
items such as deposits in transit and outstanding checks, which have not
been processed by the bank at December 31, 2012. The bank balance is
categorized as follows:

Insured by FDIC $ 65,980
Insured by SIPC 48,547
Uninsured 4373

Total Bank Balance - $ 118,900

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

2012 2011

Leasehold improvements $ 26,883 $ 26,883

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 26,927 5,902

Office equipment 5,145 5,145
Subtotal 58,955 37,930
Less: accumulated depreciation (32,664) (25,779)
Total $ 26,291 $ 12,151

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
totaled $6,885 and $4,958.

10



5. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

201 2011
National affiliation fees $ 4,000 $ 3,608
Other miscellaneous fees 208 2,646
Total $ 4,208 $ 6,254

6. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
December 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Auto repairs $ 5680 $ 3,430
Business venture options/plan 20,000 -
Capacity building 225 -
Celebrations 1,382 1,802
Clothing 102 102
Cribs and mattresses 7,208 500
Dehumidifier 600 -
Energy improvements 299 526
Flooring replacement 1,000 1,000
Gift Works software - 2,250
Guest development - 1,000
Guest education - 2,000
Guest transportation - 1,835
Homeless prevention - 2,199
Individuals - -
Legal fees - 6,000
Lighting fixtures 1,000 -
Lighting fixtures and window shades - 21,200
Make Someone Happy - 10,000
Memorial library 1,080 200

(continued)
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(continued)

Pantry 262 8,617
Play yard eguipment - 500
Refrigeratorffreezer 2,929 -
Storage supplies - -
Tables and chairs 5,000 -
Washing machines and detergent - 979
Total $ 46767 $ 64,140

Net Assets Released from Restriction

Net assets are released from program restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purposes.

Operating Leases

The Organization leased office space under the terms of a non-cancellable
lease agreement that expired on July 31, 2012. Rent expense under this
agreement totaled $9,600 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The Organization also leases office equipment under a non-cancellable lease
agreement that expired in December 2012. Equipment rental expense totaled
$2,583 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Estimated future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Amount
2013 $__9,600
Total $ 9600

Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies whenever
other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at their
fair market value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value in any
new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measurements, fair value refers to the
price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a

12
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liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the meas-
urement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the principle that fair value
should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that priori-
tizes the information used to develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Organization categorizes its fair value
estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of
price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair value.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at
the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in
Level 1 are highly liquid instruments with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs
are directly observable from active markets for substantlally the full
term of the asset or liability being valued; and

e Level 3 - Pricing inputs signiﬁcant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are classified as Level 1
and approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those financial

instruments.

Name Chanqé

During 2012, the Organization changed its name from Greater Nashua
Interfaith Hospitality Network, Inc. to Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc.
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PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

o Operations/Program Management :
Regional/National Staffing and Leadership, Recruitment and Training
Program Development /Project and Proposal Management
Financial Management/Resource Development
Strategic Plan Development
Productivity and Efficiency improvement

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNICATIONS
Greater Nashua Mental Health Center, Nashua, NH (2012-present)

* Responsible for working with the Executive Director and Board of Directors to develop

short and fong long-term goals and strategies for fundraising and outreach.

» Coordinate and implement comprehensive development and communications strategies.
ldentify and cultivate prospects and establish relationships with key donors, corporate
and philanthropic leaders.

Author and establish Major Gifts, Planned Giving and Endowment Initiatives

Assist in Leadership recruitment and voluntarism

Develop and execute internal and external communication strategies.

Establish collaborative programs and business development initiatives with corporate
and community affiliates.

» Foundations, government funding sources, donor recruitment and relations.

¢ Staff recruitment, training and management.

¢ Oversee marketing, communications, database and social media initiatives.

CLINICAL HEALTH MENTOR
Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Research DepartmentlDartmouth College of Medicine (2012-2013)

» Provide healthy lifestyle mentoring for adults with mental ilinesses, including individual nutrition
and clinical training exercise programs

e Clinical case management for health and weliness research study in affiliation with Dartmouth
College School of Medicine, Medicare, Samsa and The YMCA of Greater Nashua

e Data collection and measurable outcome reporting and clinical assessments.

SENIOR DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT
American Diabetes Association, Boston, MA (2010-2011)

+ Lead for regional, state and national business development for diabetes funding, advocacy and
education.

« Program management, and development of individual giving society memberships, planned giving,
endowment funding and corporate and private foundation funding; board of director recruitment,
maximization of current resources and funding relationships.

» Developed and implemented policies and procedures pertinent to organization growth and stability

» Mentored staff to create a positive atmosphere of professionalism and support; provided honest and
timely feedback to employees; addressed performance issues with individual empowerment of

strengths and abilities

REGIONAL DIRECTOR
Community Health Charities of New England, Hartford, CT (2007-2010)



e Responsible for establishing the Greater Boston Regional operations

» Recruited, then reported to regional Board of Directors providing leadership, consultation,
recruitment, education and training

¢ Directed regional, state and national business development for federated campaigns.
Responsible to Community Health Charities Corporate Office, Hartford, CT, and parent affiliate
Health Charities of America, Washington, DC.

» Led and coordinated active and planned private sector corporate employee campaign
development;

» Corporate and government relations and advocacy, charity relations and community involvement.

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR
Phillips Medical Systems, Andover, MA (2004-2006)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Greater Lawrence (2000-2003)

DIRECTOR — ALEXIS DETOCQUIVILLE SOCIETY (MAJOR GIFTS/LEADERSHIP GIVING)
United Way of Merrimack Valley, Lawrence-Hill Ward, MA (1898-2000)

DIRECTOR — DEVELOPMENT & MARKETING
Citizens’ League of Adult Special Services (CLASS) Inc, Lawrence, MA (1996-1998)

MARKETING DIRECTOR
New England Development, Newton, MA  (1991-1996), Mall Rockingham Park, Salem, NH

EDUCATION & TRAINING

Graduate Program, Boston University, MA

BA Art History/Fine Arts, Marymount College, Tarrytown, NY

Art History International Student Program, Birkbeck College, University of London
Curatorial Internship, imperial War Museum, London, England

Fine Arts Internship, Henry Moore Foundation, Hertsfordshire, England

AFFILIATIONS

Community Health Charities of New England, Leadership Council
American Red Cross, Board Member

American Cancer Society, Board Member

CLASS, Inc. Board Member

YWCA Greater Lawrence, Board Member

Fordham University/Marymount College Alumni/Recruitment Chair
Presentation of Mary Academy Alumni/Recruitment Chair

Copley Society, Boston, MA Member

Friends of the Tate Gallery, London, Member

Ford Modeling Agency, New York, Alumni Association Member

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

American Fitness Training Association - Clinical Trainer; Certified Personal Trainer
(Planet Fitness, Work Out World, Andover Training Station - 2000 to present)
American Heart Association CPR/First Aid Certification

Corporate Facilitator Certification, Philips Medical Systems

Microsoft Office Programs (MS Word, Excel, Outiook Email, Internet Explorer, more)
SAP, SalesForce®, Raisers Edge ©, Giftworks, EMR Reporting Systems
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EDUCATION

BS Elementary Education and Special Education, Keene State College, Keene, NH
Master Level Course Work in Testing/Special Education at Keene State College
Master Level Course Work in Counseling Psychology at Boston Coliege

AWARDS

Outstanding Citizenship

Special Education Educator College Award/Stipend
Qutstanding Paraprofessional Award for the State of NH

WORK EXPERIENCE

Director of Family Empowerment — Family Promise of Greater Nashua (Anne-Marie House) Hudson, NH: Part-time
family case management for a transitional housing program for homeless families. {October 2006 -
present)

Facilitator - Parenting Journey, 12 week course designed to cassist parents increase their self-care
practices, raise awareness of the past and present factors that influence their parenting styles, enhance
their parenting skills, and utilize their strengths to support their children and build nurturing family
relationships. [ January 2009 - present}

4th Grade Teacher - Fairgrounds Elementary School, Nashua, NH: Respaonsible for teaching 26 children
including children with diverse socio-economic backgrounds, learning disabilities, retardation, and
emotional challenges. Started a "Building Community* planto develop positive student sel f-esteem and
behavior management. {2 Months - left due to health problems)

Special Education Paraprofessional - Fairgrounds Elementary School, Nashua, NH: Case management /
teacher support for students with ADD/ADHD, Pervasive Developmental Disabilities, Downs Syndrome,
Developmentda and Language Disabilities. Advocated students’ needs to receive support services for
physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy, counseling, & adaptive physical education.
Paraprofessional: Responsible for teaching computer skills in a lab setting to students in the 2nd - 6th
grade. Planned and taught alf lessons. (5 Years)

Preschool Director - Chapel School, Nashua, NH: Responsible for school’s compliance with state
regulations; school administration {3 teachers, parent volunteers, school board and church boardy,
developed curriculum, handbook, skill level reporting system; earned first NAEYC accreditation; designed

school logo. (2 years)

Special Education Teacher/Case Manager - Peterborough Middie School, Peterborough, NH: Wrote
educational plans and managed special services. Active participant in special needs team, parent
support services, home visits, and high school /community vocational licison. Taught 5th - 8th grade
students identified as learning disabled, emotionally handicapped, mentally retarded, attention deficit
disorder and autistic. Wrote behavioral and educational plans. Developed curriculum guides in all
content areas with an additional emphasis on life skills and social /femotional health. Started a school
bookstore and funch program run entirely by special education students. Co-authored a grant for a

parenting course on adolescent sexuality. Taught course. (6 years)

Director of Alternative HS Education Program - Peterborough, NH: Authored and directed grants for
High Schoaol Equivalency and Aduit Basic Education. Directed grant for Adult Performance Level
education. Liaison between 2 area high schools and their administrative and guidance staff. Met with
Human Resource managers in local industry to facilitate GED participation for their employees. Regularly
attended state level meetings and conferences. Taught high school equivalency language arts classes.
Hired and supervised 3 staff positions. Facilitated publicity, graduation ceremonies, and guest speakers.



JUNE C. ST. LAWRENCE

Assistant Director for Adult Education - Peterborough, NH: Responsible for publicity, bookkeeping, public relations,
brochure design and administrative support for large community education program.
(1 year)

Special Education Teacher - Woodbury, NJ: Tought mainstreamed special education students age 11 - 15, developed
program that involved lengthening the school day from 1/2 day to whole day which included a change in philosophy
and building from elementary to junior high. Wrote educational plans, designed curriculum and taught all academic
areas with educational support to school specialists.

(2 years)

VOLUNTEER WORK

Key Coordinator for Anne-Marie House - Hudson, NH: Responsible for organizing volunteers to staff an entire week of
hosting responsibilities for homeless families; Assisted with varying projects for guests such as child behavior plans, job
search, housing search, chore lists, & guest guidelines. (2 years)

Church In Society - Church committee member serving global and local issues regarding poverty
(6years)

CROP Walk—Education Coordinator (6 years)

Youth Leader for the NH Youth Interfaith Council - Southern NH: Started an original program for interfaith activities
which involved youth from the Baha'i, Christian, Judaic, and Muslim faith traditions; included visits and fellowship with
each faith community while seeking to build bridges and to facilitate world peace. (3 years)

Youth Facilitator for Children of Abraham Series and “The Golden Rule” Workshop — Southern New Hampshire
Interfaith Communities: Assisted with a trialogue discussion series between Christians, Jews, and Muslims. Organized a
youth interfaith religious fair to promote understanding among religions (3 years)

Preschool Board Member - Chapel School, Christ the King Lutheran Church, Nashua, NH: Vice President (5 years)
Sunday School Teacher and Youth Leader - Christ the King Lutheran Church, Nashua, NH (8 years)
Cub Scout Leader and Committee Chair - Nashua, NH (5 years)

PTO President - Ledge Street School, Nashua, NH (1 year)

Commiittee Member: NH Foundation Aid Formula Review with School Superintendent, Berard Massey; Hiring Committee
for Elementary School Principal; Parent Advocacy Group to Promote Nashua Funding for Quality Education

Member of Board of Directors - Monadnock Workshop, Peterborough, NH: Served as secretary and fundraiser on a 7
member board responsible for overseeing the operation of a school, sheltered workshop, vocational training center and
two group homes for handicapped aduilts,

(5 years)

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT/COURSEWORK/CONFERENCES
* Young Children Without Homes Conference: 2008, 2012

¢ Family Promise Conference: 2007, 2009, 2011, 2013

® Measuring Up-Program Outcomes

e Generational Poverty

¢ Jobs, Jobs, Jobs

o Self Sufficiency Matrix

¢ Partnering for Homeless Employment
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» Mental Health Of Our Children

» Ways to Enhance Children’s’ Activity and Nutrition

» Building a Strong Foundation for Addressing the Mental Health Needs of Infants and Toddlers Experiencing
Homelessness

» Homelessness and Its Mental Health Impact on Children and Adolescents

*» Young Family Critical Time Intervention Model for Successful Transitions to Housing

» Partnering with Parents for Better Outcomes for Young Children

» Parent Engagement: The Link That Makes It Work

» Trauma Informed Services ‘

* Mental Health Support and Panel Discussion in the Transitional Housing Setting

» Introduction to Motivational Interviewing

» Filial Therapy

» Impact of Trauma on Parenting

» Substance Abuse Training—Part |

» Case Management Training

» Crisis Prevention Intervention

» Homelessness and Trauma Training

» Trauma Informed Case Management

» Healthy Kids

» NH Easy

» NAMI—Family to Family Course

» “Homeless Management and Information Systems” Training

» Parenting Journey Facilitator Training

» 1-2-3 Magic {Parenting Program)

» More 1-2-3 Magic (Parenting Program)

» “A Safe Place” Training—Running A Domestic Violence Support Group

» “SOAR" Training—Social Security Advocacy

» Children Without Homes Conference

» “Families First” Workshop

» “McKinney Vento” Workshop

» Grant Writing Workshop- United Way

» “Community Resource and Referrals” Workshop

» “Family Promise Mentoring Program”

» NH Council on Homelessness Conference

» Suicide Hot Line Training

» Anger Management

» Mental liiness: Bipolar, Depression, Anxiety, Obsessive Compulsive Disorder, Oppositional Defiance, Borderline
Personality Disorder

» Behavioral Interventions; Building Community with Inner City Children

» Addictions

» Alcoholics and Narcotics Anonymous, Al-Anon

» Teen Pregnancy and Adolescent Sexuality

» Child Abuse and Neglect

» Crisis Intervention

» Affective and Cognitive Therapies

» Reality Therapy, Advanced Reality Therapy, & “Take Effective Control of Your Life” with Dr. William Glaser

» Vocational Education

» Computer Technology



Tami Kaye McKay

Contact Information:

Objective: re-obtain the position of Volunteer Coordinator at Anne-Marie House
Education: diploma Registered Nurse, St. Luke's School of Nursing, Fargo ND

Employment History: Neonatal Intensive Care Units @ St. Alexius Hospital, Bismarck ND and
Monterey Park Hospital, Montebello CA; Elementary School substitute Nurse and Classroom
Teacher, After School Care Attendant, and Office Assistant @ Presentation of Mary Academy,
Hudson NH; Respite Caregiver and Companion Care provider Nashua NH and Brookline NH; past
Volunteer Coordinator @ Anne-Marie House and current volunteer interim, Hudson NH

Community Involvement: Christ the King Congregation Council (past President and Ministry
Liaison), Chapel School Council (past President), Youth Ministry Advisory Committee, Women of
the Evangelical Lutheran Church (past President, current member), Evangelism Ministry Team
Liaison, Congregational Care Ministry Team member, Parish Education Ministry Team
Coordinator, past Nashua West Key Coordinator, previous Volunteer Coordinator for Anne-
Marie House, and Anne-Marie House Volunteer, and current volunteer interim for Volunteer
Coordinator position

Qualifications: compassionate heart, joy of service, strong interpersonal and communication
skills, Volunteer Management course completed, High-Impact Volunteer seminar attended, and
positive position past-performance

Personal History: blessed at-home Mom and Gramma, married 31 years, mid-West upbringing
‘with Scandinavian + Lutheran roots, passion for faith-based volunteering, and Gifts to share

What joy is mine to currently and regularly volunteer at Anne-Marie House, and serve at Christ
the King Lutheran Churchl I am blessed with time to share and a family that's supportive and
engaged in faith-based activities/volunteerism. Ingrained is ‘to whom much is given, much is
required’; it's a heart response grounded in love and grace.

The Volunteer Coordinator part-time position is one that I held prior to needing to focus
energies on family care, and have supported in a consultant role these past 2 years. It would be
my privilege to serve again with the Staff, Volunteers and Guests at Anne-Marie House
providing support and lifting spirits in the capacity of full-time Volunteer Coordinator.

References:
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 6
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES \\ m
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES b\"lj’

BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Mary Ann Cooney Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Associate Commissioner
April 9, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council g
State House KW
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION I, F@JM {; \'\DL)

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the
vendors listed below to provide homeless shelter operations activities to assist homeless
individuals through the Emergency Solutions Grant program in an amount not to exceed
$23,078 retroactive to January 1, 2014 upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
through December 31, 2014.

endor
Vendor umber Location Total
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc.  {159372 - B001 Nashua $9,246
First Congregational Church 154198 - BO01  [Concord $13,832
Total: 1$23,078

Funds are available in the following accounts with the ability to adjust encumbrances in
each of the State Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the grant term is based on a calendar year,
however the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has not yet issued the
notice of grant awards for this contract. The NH Consolidated Plan stipulates that contractual
funding coincide with the current grant calendar year. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development grant regulations stipulate that funds be obligated to vendors within 60
days of the Department receiving formal notification of the award amounts.

This package includes 2 of 14 retroactive agreements and represents $23,078 of a total
of $469,735 anticipated to be available to assure compliance with U.S. Department of Housing



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

and Urban Development requirements. The Governor and Executive Council have already
approved twelve (12) of the fourteen (14) contracts. These agreements allocate a portion of
the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act funds, formerly
known as the Stewart B. McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program funds, provided to New
Hampshire by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The vendors will
utilize Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act and matching
funds pursuant to their agreements for homeless shelter operations activities that include costs
such as rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies. Such activities help negate instances where
households are threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated that these
contractors will serve approximately 4,200 individuals statewide.

The Department has administered this program for 26 previous rounds of federal
funding. A Request for Proposal was issued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and
Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012 and posted on the Department
of Health and Human Services’ website. The Request for Proposal required potential bidders
submit proposals for funding for state fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Funding is awarded based
on anticipated federal funding. The Department of Housing and Urban Development
historically announces funding levels in the late spring. The Department has not yet been
notified of the funding amounts available for state fiscal year 2015. However, the Department
executed contracts for anticipated funding so that when the federal funds do become available,
vendor access to the funds will allow continuation of services to homeless individuals without
interruption.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project, use of outcome/performance measures and
outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; local service delivery area
coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach; accurate and timely utilization of
Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance with
rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to
submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models
to be evaluated independently. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50
required for funding. (Please see the attached Scoring and Financial detail for additional
information).

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the coliection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers,
including various demographic information reports, as well as income and expense reports,
including match doliars.

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be
required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be the primary reporting
tool for.outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless people may not be available in local
communities, resulting in a statewide increase in demand for these services on the local
welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local
shelter in places not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities.
This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and
will be cut off from basic supports for shelter, health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs
would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agencies would have to close their doors
or drastically reduce staff.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of funds: 100% Federal

In the event that Federal funds became no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

itted,
er

Approved byk\‘x&‘ | /

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Emergency Solutions Grant {ESG)

The Bridge House, Inc. (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $15,031
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $15,031
Sub-total $30,062

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,085
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,085
Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal |  Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $6,916
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $6,916
Sub-total $13,832
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,982
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,982
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,052.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $9,052.50
Sub-total $18,105
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
d/b/a Anne-Marie House
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $4,623
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $4,623
Sub-total $9,246




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,767
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,767
Sub-total $41,534
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,280
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $18,280
Sub-total $36,560
Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $21,278.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $21,278.50
Sub-total $42 557
New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,659.50
' 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,659.50
Sub-total $41,319
The Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $19,675.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $19,675.50
Sub-total $39,351
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,624
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,624
Sub-total $33,248




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,637.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $30,637.50
Sub-total $61,275
Tri-County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,256
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,256
Sub-total $32,512
| Total $469,735 |




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The
Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ website.

Evaluation HMIS Total
Shelter Programs Score Utilization |Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont  80.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) . 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
(HEARTH), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since HEARTH
funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget, proposals
that qualified for HEARTH funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for
funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposals received, the reviewers were organized
into twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and
scores. The review committee teams included the following individuals:

o Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human
Services Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a
Community Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery
Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State
Continuum of Care

¢ Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner |, Office of Consumer and Family
Affairs, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Division of Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD
Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator,
American Friends Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord'’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy
Unit, Division of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
Attorney General's Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human
Potential, formerly Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department
of Corrections

Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program Specialist 1V, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families,
NH Department of Health and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Developmental Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



¢ Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug
and Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the
Homeless Program

e Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for
PeaceWorks New Hampshire, LLC

o Kiristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH
Department of Corrections

o Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

¢ Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

e Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator IV, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human
Service Director, Town of Salem

HEARTH funds were awarded to the Operations budgets of emergency
homeless shelter programs to meet federal requirements for the utilization of
these funds. In order to assure that HEARTH funds were available to all
programs providing emergency shelter, the following formula was utilized:

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars; and

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of
the Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION,
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Scrvices 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
Family Promise Of Greater Nashua, Inc. 180 Lowell Road

Hudson, NH 03051
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number
(603) 883-7338 010-042-7927-102-0731 December 31, 2014 $9,246.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
- - A .
/ n - N

é@ Whakice. - [Rbecea N Liohakicn tpz5idest

1.13" Acknowledgement: State of_N_H:, County of_Hyllsbsray h

") (
On /’ / ’,Lbefore the ur\«mg},}}fﬁcer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name\\b%pa]p qu% 11, and acknowledged that sthe executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
5 . -...... ,’,

1.12. S’
@,fm#rubﬁc‘"
EXPEgéON Crzl

YT TT Py

N
b
§

[Seall] Z =

0, ol
OF S
1.132 Name @@W Sistice of the Peace
7

)

\77//78 @%%%Wﬁcnce y )\/o%a ry

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15  Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

i 1, i %
- cSocroe
1.16 ApprovWe N.H. Dep@! of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approyal by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: Q%m On: "R 7~ LL(

1.18 Approval by the Gov,‘rﬁor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (*“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(**Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecment to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Statc
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts

. otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80.7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employces or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, tcrm or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may takc any one, or more, or all, of thc following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifving the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise aceruc to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall dcliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agrcement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, cmployees, agents or membcrs shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffercd by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any rcnewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Fach

Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials:
Date: v~



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that thc Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“*Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subjcct to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connectjon with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employce of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemnor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the beriefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the partics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposcs only, and the words contained thercin
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. [n the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be exccuted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undcrstandings relating hereto.

Contractor [nitials: Jd L
Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1

2.2

23

24

25

26

Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://mww.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:
The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will

provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initals 1/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

0O Prevention/intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

OO Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

B4 Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials Ig 5 SL
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14,231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program,;

2014; not to exceed $9,246.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $9,246.00

Total program amount: $9,246.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials R L/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and ailowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4, Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nar may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shali be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $9,246.00 $9,246.00

Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies

TOTALS $9,246.00 $9,246.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $18,492.00
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at arate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials L
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or coliected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials L
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the foliowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shail
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations. ’

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, reguiations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Temrmination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 Inthe event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Pian.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: Fouw, \7 Promise ol Geeate rNashns , I,

H-(-H %ﬁzﬁmga___
Date Name: ReineceP ) Liy bakk —

Title: ’Pl’e S\dtﬂ*

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials & ‘ { _

’ The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date ff el A lj



Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment # 1 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment # 1”) dated this 3rd day of October, 2014, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and The Bridge House, Inc. (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business located
at 260 Highland Street, Plymouth, NH 03264.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on March 26, 2014 (Item #28), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as
amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may at
its sole discretion, amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties upon
Governor and Executive Council Approval; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the end date of the contract, increase the price
limitation and change the payment terms; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

To amend as follows:
1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, to read:
05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731-42306010
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, to read:
June 30, 2015
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, to read:
$45,093

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency
Solutions Grant Program, and replace with Amendment # 1 Exhibit B, Method
and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency Solutions Grant Program.

CA/DHHS/100213
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Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

5. Delete Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Revised Exhibit C, Special
Provisions.

6. Delete Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions, and replace with Amendment
#1 Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions.

7. Delete Exhibit G, Certification Regarding The Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance With
Requirements Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-
Based Organizations and Whistleblower Protections.

CA/DHHS/100213
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

)/ //é‘//{/ W

Date / Mary Ann.Coongy
Assocuat Co muss:oner

The Bridge House, Inc.

Name: 1y, ¢ Bridge House The,
Title: 47)(6(»&\\1(, |ret’(0"

N[ 4/d CoSerdnvorl =
77

Acknowledgement:

State of New\kwqpéw \¢, County of Gea 4on on \\\ 4 \ \A ,
before the undersignéd officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public er<ustice-eftthe-Peace

Taeg

N i b e / e 1/14_‘/&?_/1/(/
# N;me/and Tn(r (gxfﬂb&ad or
pd

- (.: r;
(] [ ] 4 2
€
B Biece e

e "( - /}an,/g/am?

~.

s
»
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2 1 S
Date| , _'r\_li?lr;ezv Y\‘g@wﬂw

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
The Bridge House, inc.
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Amendment # 1 Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY 2015 Not Applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

SFY 2014: not to exceed $15,031

SFY 2015 not to exceed $30,062

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program,;
Operating expenses: $45,093

Total program amount: $45,093

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual ard annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State. ’

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited

CA/DHHS/100213 i
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financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
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Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authonzation from the State.

Emergency Solutions Grant

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY 2014 and SFY 2015:

Federal

EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $45,093 $45,093
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies

TOTALS $45,093 $45,093
TOTAL Federal+Match $90,186¢ [IIINNENEGEGEGEGEEE
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescnbed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. f at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ali funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disaliow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other matenals prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shalt have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all onginal materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any matenals produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tnbes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national ongin
discnmination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistlebiower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shali do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation witl be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations goveming the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shail mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Revised Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _ { -/

06/27/14 Page 5 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 - Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailabie.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1  comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence with additional abuse or molestation liability coverage of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and additional professional liability coverage of not less
than $1,000,000 per each act; and
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govemment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance
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against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: The ?)(IA(SQ \krkc)% Tre.

// //[/4/ (e Seudoyrr?™

N :
Dat?’ Ti{alze /mea;/// & D) e 7e—
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State of Nefo Hampshive
Hepartnent of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that The Bridge House, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
February 24, 2004. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13" day of November A.D. 2014

e, Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Jeffrey M. Brown, do hereby certify that:

1. | am a duly elected Officer of The Bridge House, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on November 4, 2014:
{Date:

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the A dayof _povmsa  2019.

{Date Contract Signed:

4. Catherine Bentwood is the duly authorized Executive Director of the Agency.

Wénature of the Elected Officen
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of q?f 8 ({“}% ™

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this A H L day of’ﬂ\(/u , 20 'q ,

B Q&Tf’ \W\r\ &FOLJ”\

(Name of Eletted Officer of the Agency

P

S M e

{Notary Public/Justice of the Peace;

Commission ExpireS'

SUSAN M. HAMMOND
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
My Commission Expires:
July 13, 2018

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MW/DD/YYYY)
6/24/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION {S WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

CONTACT pat Mack
PHONE
[ (AIC No,|

Exn. (603)293-2791 (A5, No): (603) 293-7188

21 Meadowbrook Lane jﬁ“&‘jﬁﬁ. pat@esinsurance.com
P O Box 7425 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gilford NH 03247-7425 INSURER A Markel
INSURED wsurer B Markel Insurance 37184F
The Bridge House, Inc. INSURER C :
260 Highland Street INSURER D :
INSURERE ;
Plymouth NH 03264 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:2014 Cert REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDLISUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR [ WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY ] EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
F— DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | § 100,000
A | cLamsmane OCCUR 850255266570-10 7/1/2014  17/1/2015 | yep exp Any oneperson) | 8 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
-
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 1,000,000
X l POLICY | l F,’Ecof LOC . $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (CE?QEQQEEQS'NGLE LMIT $ 1,000,000
A X | aANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ﬁbLngVNED §8¥SgULED 100258266571-10 m/1/2014 17/1/2015 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
Medical payments $ 5,000
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED l | RETENTION § $
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION ngfm}#-s OETQ-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000
MBER ?
(handatoryin Ny 00 MWC0037234~02 ©/10/2013 19/10/2014 | g\ piSEASE - EAEMPLOYEH § 100,000
gégf:'gfgﬁgﬁ Lg]ggPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A {Abuse or Molestation 850255266570-10 7/1/2014 [1/1/2015 Occurrence/Aggregate $1,000,000
A | professional 850255266570-109 7/1/2014 [7/1/2015 | gach Act 1,000,000 Agg 2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

INS025 (201005).01

Re: Funding
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
State of NH, Dept of Health & Human Serv
Bureau of Homeless & Housing AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Attn: Anne Pocock
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301 pat Mack,/PAT "P . NAL PW E
ACORD 25 (IZO10/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY
INFORMATION PAGE
MARKEL

Original Printing Issued July 12, 2014 Standard
e ]
NCCI Carrier Code:22616
Type : Stock Policy Number:
Markel Insurance Company |MWC003723 4-03 l
Ten Parkway North

Renewal of Policy:

| MWC0037234-02 1
Rewrite of Policy:
Fein # / Risk ID #:

l201057931 / 280032549 I

Deerfield, IL 60015

1. The Insured’s Name and Mailing address:

The Bridge House Inc DBA Name:
260 Highland St SIC CODE: 8322
Plymouth, NH 03264-3602
603-536-7631
Other work place not shown above: See Attached Location Schedule Type of Nonprofi

entity:

2. The policy period is from 09/10/2014  to 09/10/2015 [12.01 AM Standard Time] at the insured’s mailing address.

3. A. Workers Compensation Insurance: Part One of this policy applies to the Workers
Compensation Law of the states listed here: NEW HAMPSHIRE
B. Employers liability Insurance: Part Two of this policy applies to work in each state listed in ltem 3A.
The fimits of our liability under Part Two are:

Bodily Injury by Accident: $100,000 each accident
Bodily Injury by Disease: $500,000 policy limit
Bodily Injury by Disease: $100,000 each employee

C. Other States Insurance: Part Three of this policy applies to the states, if any, listed here
All states except those listed in Item 3A of the Information Page and the following states or temritories: AZ, District of Columbia, ID, IL,
ME, MA, MT, NJ, NY, ND, OH, OR, WA, WY, Puerto Rico and US Virgin Islands.

D. Califomia Endorsements and Schedules

Other State Endorsements and Schedules:
MDWCI1001, MWC 1201, WC000000B, WC0001 14, WC000308, WC000406, WC000414, WC000419, WC000421C, WC000422A, WC280601,
WC280604, WC280404, MJWC1000, MPIL 1007

4. The premium for this policy will be determined by our Manual of Rules, Classifications, Rates and Rating Plans. All Information required is subject
to verification and change by audit.

Minimum Premium: 1000.00 Deposit Premium: $2,495.00 Total Estimated Annual Premium: $6,242.00
Pay plan: 4-Pay - 40%

Producer:E & S Insurance Services LLC Countersigned By:

21 Meadowbrook Ln, Unit #11 603-293-2791 )

Gitford, NH 03249 Date: 08/05/2014

Servicing office: Markel Service, Inc., (888) 500-3344

Central Park Plaza, 222 South 15th Street, Suite 1500N
Omaha, NE 68102-1680
(See extension of information page for class code, rate and premium detai)

THIS INFORMATION PAGE WITH THE WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY AND
ENDORSEMENTS, IF ANY ISSUED TO FORM A PART THEREOF, COMPLETES THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY

MDWC 1001 05 10

CLL L L] orzs L]

006684-010005-33540009-08052014 MWC0037234-03



Mission of the Bridge House and Veterans Advocacy

Since 1989 Bridge House Homeless Shelter has been helping people respond to
life's challenges and secure independence by providing critical support and skills
to acquire permanent, affordable, appropriate housing and return to the
community with new found self-esteem and sense of societal value.

The Bridge House vision is to end homelessness in Grafton County. This is
especially true for veterans. Bridge House is unconditionally committed to the VA
mandate to end veterans’ homelessness by 2015. No matter how full all veterans

are welcome at any time.



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2013 and 2012
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLS AVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX#(603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THEPRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements The Bridge House, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation), which comprises the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 and the related
statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of The Bridge House, Inc. as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MkM,FV

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 10, 2013




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and federal contracts
Other Grants

Contributions - Cash

Special Events

Fees

Interest

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Net assets released from donor
imposed restrictions
EXPENSES

Program Services
Management and general

Fundraising

Increase in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of year

Net assets, End of year

TEMPORARILY
UNRESTRICTED  RESTRICTED TOTAL

$ 127,137 $ S 127,137

92,813 2,000 94,813

55,049 13,581 68,630

11,717 - 11,717

11,165 . 11,165

4,839 - 4,839

302,720 15,581 318,301

15,581 (15,581) .

242,183 ; 242,183

26,193 ; 26,193

13,303 ; 13,303

281,679 281,679

36,622 - 36,622

478,785 700,000 1,178,785

$ 515,407 $ 700,000 $ 1215407

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets $ 36,622 $ (8,151
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Change in Deferred revenue net of prior period adjustment (104,562) 4,121
Depreciation 22,392 29,297
(Increase) decrease in Operating Assets
Contracts receivable , 100,312 (4,859)
Prepaid expenses 10 410
Decrease (increase) In Operating Liabilities
Accounts payable (6,639) 6,021
Accrued payroll (1,034) 2,352
Accrued compensated absences 311) (1,537)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 46,790 27,654
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (30,758) (2,299
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16,032 25,355
Cash and Cash Equivalents beginning of year 495,849 470,494
Cash and Cash Equivalents end of year $ 511,881 $ 495,849

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
5.



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and Equipment

All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $100 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate
fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using primarily the straight-line
method. Depreciation Expense was $26,975 and $29,297 for the years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 the Organization had no cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
Organizations tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In
addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation
under section 509(a)(2).

Pledges (Contracts) Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the
Organization. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions
are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets. Contributions of long-lived assets are considered unrestricted unless the donor
specifies a time-restriction.

The Organization provides for losses on grants and pledges receivable using the allowance
method. The allowance is based on experience, third-party contracts, and other
citcumstances, which may affect the ability of donors to meet their obligations. Receivables
are considered impaired if full principal payments are not received in accordance with the
contractual terms. It is the Organization’s policy to charge off

e e e e 4 e e mems ameemm s



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2. CONCENTATION OF RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization up to $250,000. At June 30, 2013 and 2012
the Organization had no uninsured balance.

NOTE 3. CONCENTRATION IN SUPPORT REVENUE

Government and private sector grants accounted for approximately 70% of the Organization’s
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Contributions accounted for
approximately 14% and 15% of the Organization’s revenues for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

NOTE 4. CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE
Contracts receivable are comprised primarily of State of New Hampshire, Grafton County and
Town of Plymouth service agreements. In addition a private foundation has pledged support for
the Organization.

NOTE 5. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets include the following at June 30:
2013 2012

Town of Plymouth, NH $ 700,000 $ 700,000

The Organization received a $700,000 block grant from the Town of Plymouth, NH to assist with
the construction of a new facility during the year ended June 20, 2005. A mortgage deed in the
amount of $670,000 related to this grant has been recorded against the title of the property. The
Organization is required to continue the building’s use as a homeless shelter for a period of twenty
years. In the event of default, the Organization must return the funds or relinquish ownership of
the building to satisfy the restrictions.

NOTE 6. OPERATING LEASE

Effective October 5, 2004, the Organization entered into a lease agreement with Whole Village
Family Resource Center to lease a portion of the Center’s Premises. The term of the lease is for 50
years and expires October 4, 2054. The rent is §1 plus incremental costs, which are defined as snow
removal, repairs, lawn care and landscaping, utility services, water and sewer, insurance and other
incidental costs incurred by the Organization use of the premise. There is no lease expense for the
years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012. Incremental costs of use of the premise are included in
operating expenses and allocated by function.




ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLS AVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTEOF FAX #(603) 226-3532 MEMBER OF THEPRIVATE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

Our report on our audit of the basic financial statements of The Bridge House, Inc. as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 our report dated October 10, 2013, which expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements, appears on page one. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Lol ~ Ao, P/

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 10, 2013

11-




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Management
Services & General Fundraising Total

Payroll $ 145,272 8,738 $161,212
Payroll taxes 13,132 790 14,573
Employee benefits, health insurance 7,715 464 8,562
Total payroll expenses 166,119 9,992 184,347
Professional fees 6,590 3,920 - 10,510
Essential services 1,584 - 1,584
Telephone and internet 1,393 - 1,393
Office supplies and postage 4,749 - 4,749
Depreciation - 26,367 2,930 29,297
Rent 1,500 - 1,500
Utilities 11,556 1,284 12,840
Common area charges 3,618 402 4,020
Maintenance and repairs 9,042 1,005 10,047
Supplies 4,917 4,917
Vehicle expenses 4,838 - 4,838
Travel, training and conferences 1,691 - 1,691
Insurance 11,922 - 11,922
Criminal records search 121 - 121
Direct client services 3,816 - 3,816
Website & Marketing 535 60 595
Miscellaneous 1,030 - 1,030
TOTAL EXPENSES § 261,388 19,593 $289,217

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-13-




BRIDGE HOUSE SHELTER AND VETERANS ADVOCACY
260 HIGHLAND STREET PLYMOUTH, NH 03264

NAME POSITION
Jeff Brown President
Finance
Realtor
Vice President
Brett Miller Development
Veteran &
Police Officer
Kathleen Secretary
Norris Development
PSU Grad.
Dept., PHD
Flora Boyce Treasurer
Banking
Barbara Development
Maciejewski
Amy Barnes Development

PSU Marketing

Steve Flynn Governance &
PSU Grad. Nominating
Dept., PHD

Kim Giles Development
MSW

-Dirgctor: Catherine Bentwood, RN

House Manager: Holly Cormiea



Catherine Bentwood RN

Qualifications:
Leadership experience with three non-profit agencies
N H Registered Nurse License# 034589-21
Proven record of building partnerships, collaborative networking
Skilled in physical/mental health care and patient education

Employment:

Jan 2009 - Executive Director Bridge House Homeless Shelter
present ‘

1989-2008 Patient advocate/evaluator/minor-op assistant general surgery office

1979-1987 Owner/developer Bodyworks Plymouth, NH
Planning and delivery full service health fitness for all ages
Researched/designed ongoing training for all instructors
Organized/designed all New England professional development workshop

1966-1973  St. Elizabeth’s Hospital, Boston, MA — ICU

NE Deaconess, Boston, MA -ICU

South Coast Hospital, Laguna Beach, CA- M&S

Registered Nurse, Roosevelt Hospital School of Nursing, NYC
AWARDS

2012 New Hampshire Charitable Foundation Lakes Region Leadership Award for work on
ending homelessness for veterans

2012 Granite State Service Award

2009 Chamber of Commerce/ James C Hobart Award

2001 Robert Craft/New England Patriots Community Champion Award — Co Recipient
1998 Rotary Citizen of the Year Award — Co Recipient

Volunteerism and Related experience:

BRIDGEHOUSE SHELTER

2010 - Initiated local collaboration to provide housing for homeless veterans.

2011 - 6™ Annual Community Family Fun Fair

2011 — Third annual state wide “Directors’ Unplugged” brainstorm

2009 - Lead BH “Green” Initiative '

2008 - Talked Nick Mathis into invigorating The Teaching Gardens, now a town wide sustainable



project
2008 - Bridge House Board of Directors since 2001

NH PEACE ACTION

2011 - Development team member since 1999
1999 - Facilitated ongoing partnership between NHPA and NH businessman Alex Ray

PLYMOUTH REGIONAL FREE CLINIC

1997 — present: Volunteer on a rotating basis as clinic RN
2004 — present: VP Board of Directors
Refer/advocate for underserved patients

CASA VOLUNTEER
2000-2002
Court Appointed Special Advocate for children at risk

LICENSED NH FOSTER PARENT

1975-2006

Additionally, sponsored families from Vietnam, Rwanda, Honduras
WORLD PEACE INITIATIVE
2010 — January & June member of volunteer team serving in Haiti

2005 - Pitched in post Katrina in Louisiana with Alex Ray

1999 Delivered medicine/served as anti-sanction witness on international delegation, Baghdad, Iraq



Education, Training
and Accompliishments

Holly Cormiea

To pursue a challenging career in a Social Service field

2003-Present Pemi Bridge House Plymouth, NH
Manager (July 1, 05) .

Resident Care Worker- July 04-05

Manage the daily operation of a 20 bed homeless shelter in Plymouth,
NH.

Deal with all aspects of plant operation, purchasing, and maintenarnce.

Work with area social services, charities, mental health, law enforcement,
landlords, and employers.

Screen, admit and conduct case management with residents.

1998—Present Lakes Region Comm.Sves Council ~ Plymouth, NH
Direct Support Provider

Develop day program activities.

Complete daily and monthly reports.
Participate in Individual Service Agreements.
Assist with Activities of Daily Living.
Consumer employment support.

Have worked in all areas of LRCSC

CPR

Medication administration under HeM-1201

Reality Therapy & Choice Theory

Defensive Driving Course

Mental Health Education Classes

HMIS-Homeless Management Information System

Outreach- with transitioned former residents

Writing Progress Notes & Quarterly Reports, Participate in Individual
Service Plans

Liaison between Medical Professionals & Clients

Community Integration

Single parent of two teenage boys & Legal Guardian of a 2 1/2yr.old boy,
in the process of adopting



Resume as of 2/14/2014

Michael Doyle

Objective: To empower those to overcome the obstacles to stable housing by assisting in identification
and implementation of positive strategies and resources leading to improvement in mental health, in
relationships, to jobs, and permanent housing.

Skills: Resourceful in; advocacy, locating jobs and housing options, enforcement of rules and guidelines,
conflict resolution, trained in de-escalation techniques, extremely even-tempered, interacting with
participants, fair-minded and naturally incorporates humor in interactions with participants and staff.

Work experience: 2002 to present — overnight house supervisor/case manager at The Bridge House
Homeless Shelter & Veterans advocacy program.

Also current employed part time as teacher aide/house parent/life skills teacher at the Hunter School

Rumney, New Hampshire

Recent Trainings: Energetic Mindful Educational Practice; CPR; First Aid; Therapeutic Restraint; Signs
and Symptoms of Depression/Suicide; Drug and Alcohol Addiction;

Currently participating in weekly interactive seminar series entitled Choice Theory facilitated by

counselor Jay Apicelli
Education: 1998 —2001 Plymouth State College BSW

Leisure activities: Basketball, Racquetball, Cycling, Cooking, Visiting family members

References provided upon request



Francesca Gothie Diggs

OBJECTIVE

To work as a case advocate or supervisor in the daily administration of operations of a non profit
organization as a self motivated employee with dynamic management skills, who has the ability to think
“outside the box”, paying meticulous attention to detail and thriving in a fast pace work environment.
Objective strengths include excellent communication skills and ability to establish trusting and therapeutic

relationships with participants of all ages, cultures and backgrounds.

SUMMARY of QUALIFICATIONS

Able to work independently, strong ability to communicate both verbally and in writing.
Troubleshooter who can rectify situations effectively with tact and diplomacy.

Ability to supervise and motivate employees within the work environment.

Management experience that includes inspiring and empowering others,

Marketing, budgeting, daily operations, outreach and community awareness.

s  Provides assessment of direct supportive services to participants lacking the ability and/or skill to
maintain daily living situations.

Develops care plans and goals to meet needs of participants.

[ J

e  Maintains complete and current goals and documentation.

e  Utilizes and coordinates community resources to assist participants in meeting their goals for

employment and long term housing,

e  Maintains current inventory of community, state and federal resources available to participants.

o Collaborates with service providers to insure the best quality services for participants.

e Develops and implements participant centered plan that includes outreach.

e Works with multi-disciplinary staff for consultation and team work

COMMUNITY & PROFESSIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Court Appointed Special Advocate, Piedmont CASA 1999-2010. Created and implemented Job Find
Program for DSS juvenile offenders, Alexandria, VA. Initiated Mentoring Program for the Durant,
MS CSD. V.L. Murray, PTO Vice-President & President, Charlottesville, VA  Charlottesville-

Albemarle DSS Foster Parent. Special Education Advocate (MDE), Member Charlottesville Emergency
Response Team (CERT). Choice Theory certification staff training,

AWARDS

Department of Justice Service Award 2004 & 2009
Court appointed special advocate for abused & neglected children (Piedmont CASA).

EDUCATION -

The University of Mississippi, B.A., English. 1985
Graduate Studies, Educational Psychology, University of Mississippi, 1996



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

CATHERINE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR $36,000 0% 0%

BENTWOOD RN

HOLLY CORMIEA | HOUSE MANAGER $34,320 0% 0%

MIKE DOYLE & CASE ADVOCATE 15 HR $37,700 0% 0%

FRANCESCA CASE ADVOCATE 25 HR

DIGGS




Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate Commissioner

Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 4, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

NI
oy

3)26[14

]a)&) }’/@[‘{Q(W(W

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the
vendors listed below to provide homeless shelter operations activities to assist homeless
individuals through the Emergency Solutions Grant program in an amount not to exceed
$270,816 retroactive to January 1, 2014 upon Governor and Executive Council approval,

through December 31, 2014.

Vendor xs::::;rr Location Total

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism 166574-B001 Nashua $18,105
Harbor Homes, Inc. 155358-B001 Nashua $41,534
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 174173-R001 Nashua $42,557
New Horizons for New Hampshire, Inc. 175227-R001 Manchester $41,319
The Bridge House, Inc. 165288-B001 Plymouth $30,062
The Friends Program, Inc. 154987-B001 Concord $35,964
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. 177511-B001 Keene $61,275

Total $270,816)

Funds are available in the following accounts with the ability to adjust encumbrances in

each of the State Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING -

SHELTER PROGRAM

Please see attachment for fiscal details



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the grant term is based on a calendar year,
however the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has not yet issued the
notice of grant awards for this contract. The NH Consolidated Plan stipulates that contractual
funding coincide with the current grant calendar year. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development grant regulations stipulate that funds be obligated to vendors within 60
days of the Department receiving formal notification of the award amounts.

This package includes 7 of 14 retroactive agreements and represents $270,816 of a
total of $469,735 anticipated to be available to assure compliance with U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development requirements. These agreements allocate a portion of the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act funds provided to New
Hampshire by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The vendors will
utilize Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act and matching
funds pursuant to their agreements for homeless shelter operations activities that include costs
such as rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies. Such activities help negate instances where
households are threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated that these
contractors will serve approximately 4,200 individuals statewide.

The Department has administered this program for 26 previous rounds of federal
funding. A Request for Proposal was issued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and
Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012 and posted on the Department
of Health and Human Services’ website. The Request for Proposal required potential bidders
submit proposals for funding for state fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Funding is awarded based
on anticipated federal funding. The Department of Housing and Urban Development
historically announces funding levels in the late spring of each federal fiscal year. The
Department has not yet been notified of the funding amounts available for state fiscal year
2015. However, the Department executed contracts for anticipated funding so that when the
federal funds do become available, vendor access to the funds will allow continuation of
services to homeless individuals without interruption.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project; use of outcome/performance measures and
outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; local service delivery area
coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach; accurate and timely utilization of
Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance with
rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to
submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models
to be evaluated independently. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50
required for funding. (Please see the attached Scoring and Financial detail for additional
information.

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 3

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers,
including various demographic information reports, as well as income and expense reports,
including match dollars.

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be
required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be the primary reporting
tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless people may not be available in local
communities, which will increase statewide on local welfare authorities. People who are
without housing and resources will resort to seeking local shelter in places not fit for habitation,
or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that
homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for
health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or
resource agencies would have to close their doors or drastically reduce staff.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 100% Federal

In the event that Federal funds became no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Associaté Commissioner

Approved bybﬂl&\

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
The Bridge House, Inc. (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $15,031
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $15,031
Sub-total $30,062

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,085
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,085

Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)
‘ State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $6,916
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $6,916

Sub-total $13,832

The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,982
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,982
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,052.50

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $9,052.50
Sub-total $18,105

Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
d/b/a Anne-Marie House

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $4,623
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $4,623
Sub-total $9,246




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,767
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,767
Sub-total $41,534
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,280
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $18,280
Sub-total $36,560
Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $21,278.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $21,278.50
Sub-total $42,557
New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,659.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,659.50
Sub-total $41,319
he Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $19,675.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $19,675.50
Sub-total $39,351
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,624
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,624
Sub-total $33,248




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,637.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $30,637.50
Sub-total $61,275
Tri-County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,256
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,256
Sub-total $32,512
Total

$469,735 |




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The
Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ website.

Evaluation HMIS Total
Shelter Programs Score Utilization [Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 - 196.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont  [80.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
(HEARTH), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since HEARTH
funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget, proposals
that qualified for HEARTH funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for
funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposals received, the reviewers were organized
into twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and
scores. The review committee teams included the following individuals:

o Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human
Services Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a
Community Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery
Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State
Continuum of Care

¢ Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner I, Office of Consumer and Family
Affairs, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Division of Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD
Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator,
American Friends Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Healith,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy
Unit, Division of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
Attorney General’s Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human
Potential, formerly Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department
of Corrections

Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roéder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families,
NH Department of Health and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Developmental Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



¢ Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug
and Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the
Homeless Program

« Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for
PeaceWorks New Hampshire, LLC

o Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH
Department of Corrections

o Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

¢ Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

o Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator |V, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

o Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human
Service Director, Town of Salem

HEARTH funds were awarded to the Operations budgets of emergency
homeless shelter programs to meet federal requirements for the utilization of
these funds. In order to assure that HEARTH funds were available to all
programs providing emergency shelter, the following formula was utilized:

« For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars; and

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of
the Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 12 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
13  Contractor Name 14 Contractor Address
The
Bridge House Shretter, Inc. 260 Highland Street
Plymouth, NH 03264
15  Contractor Phone 16  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 18  Price Limitation
Number
(603) 536-7631 010-042-7927-102-0731 December 31,2014 $30,062.00
19 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
/// )é( j>
[ Ve a L yrrd VAT 05 FBeiicned - Suer L

Y

1.13 Acknowledgement State of AZ H County of (; A MNad—

g,

mﬁm the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

On 9/ [ before the undersigned ofﬁce@.
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

person whose name is signed in block .&l} atfd’
1.12. s

[Seal] \g

1.132 Name and Title of Notary e

Lisy VineeEuT

1,15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
1127970 A1 7 CooA

4(&0@;46@ /&WN&W

1.16 App‘oy/by the N.H. @pértment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

1.14 tate Agency Sj

By: Director, On:

117 App by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

Al e ey

118  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.-H. RSA
80:7 through RS A 80:7-c or any other provision of law,

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in -
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to-perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State..
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law, Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, -
labilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES, The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initialsy” /5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1 Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consuitation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2.3 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

2.4 The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

2.5 All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http:/Awww.nh-hmis.org.

2.6 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent

homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

& Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $30,062.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $30,062.00

Total program amount: $30,062.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptrolier General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initial,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disaliowance. If the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line ltem Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $30,062.00 $30,062.00
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $30,062.00 $30,062.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $60,124.00
CA/DHHS/M00213 Exhibit B Contractor Initi f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Deparntment, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which fite shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order 10 influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _/. Zé
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ali iedgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient}, records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Oftice of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality ot Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or. disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _/_ _/_Zf
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and

“the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to

Z
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’'s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3. Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promuigated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials W
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identitying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 Inthe event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: % /4 %4/ 7 /

Loy (FiZoe @szm/%
by e /107
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Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Amendment # 1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment # 1 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment # 1") dated this 3rd day of October, 2014, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Salvation Army (Carey House)
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit corporation with a place of
business 177 union Avenue, Laconia, NH 03246.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on April 9, 2014 (ltem #43), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may at
its sole discretion, amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties upon
Governor and Executive Council Approval; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the end date of the contract, increase the price
limitation and change the payment terms; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as
follows: '

To amend as follows:
1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, to read:
05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731-42306010
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, to read:
June 30, 2015
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, to read:
$49,872

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency
Solutions Grant Program, and replace with Amendment # 1 Exhibit B, Method
and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Emergency Solutions Grant Program.

CA/DHHS/100213
The Salvation Army (Carey House)
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5. Delete Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Revised Exhibit C, Special
Provisions.

6. Delete Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions, and replace with Amendment
#1 Exhibit C-1, Additional Special Provisions.

7. Delete Exhibit G, Certification Regarding The Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance With
Requirements Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-
Based Organizations and Whistleblower Protections.

CA/DHHS/00213
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval. :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/ ]2/
/ /7

Date

Zommissioner

The Salvation Army (Carey House)

10/23/2014 | %%M

Date Name: Thdmas A. Schenk
. : Title:  Secretary

Acknowledgement:

State of __ New York , County of Rockland on_ 10/23/2014 )
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknow|edged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of»’otary Public or Justice of the Peace

(e

Name an-Thlé of Notary or Justice of the Peace
Tahnia Wilson

Notary Public State of New York

No. 01WI16213088

Qualified in Rockland County
Commission Expires November 2, 2017

CA/DHHS/100213
The Salvation Amy (Carey House)
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

a2 4 M

Date | | Name:

Title
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was amw by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHSN00213
The Salvation Amy {Carey House)
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A ~
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Funds:

SFY 2015 Not Applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: : 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

SFY 2014, not to exceed $16,624

SFY 2015 not to exceed $33,248 .

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $49,872

Total program amount: $49,872

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above. ’

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
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financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. [f the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84,

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. [n any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the

' .
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Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

Emergency Solutions Grant

EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY 2014 and SFY 2015:

Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $49,872 $49,872
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies -
TOTALS $49,872 $49,872
TOTAL Federal+Match $99,744

CA/DHHS/100213 ‘M /
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Revised Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in-the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shali be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinatic?ns that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing '
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, orata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retentlon of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENT)ON, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1.  Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and

- properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall-include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services. -

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. .
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an

- exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All'information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of .
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

06/27/14 Page 3 of 5 Date _10/23/2014

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disaliowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilties
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor wili provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEQP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13188, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
18.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate
19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

é %/
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
18.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL. If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shail mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW,; Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean ail such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Revised Exhibit C - Special Provisions Cantractor [nitials @/
08127114 Page 5 of 5 pate 10/23/2014



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 - Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early {ermination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $500,000 per occurrence with additional
general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $3,000,000; and

Amendment #1 Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials @

CUDHHSH10713 Page 1 of 1 pate 10/23/2014



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or gex
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against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Departiment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor-identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above. A :

Contractor Name:
The Salvation Army

10/23/2014 | | /ﬁ/ﬂ /%

Date - . Name: Thokas A. Schenk
Title:  Secretary
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of Btate

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE SALVATION ARMY, a(n) New York nonprofit corporation, registered
to do business in New Hampshire on July 19, 1954. 1 further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 30" day of October, A.D. 2014

ey Bl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

[ D. Sue Foley S , do hereby certify that:
{(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1am aduly elected Officer of ___The Salvation Army
{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _June 23, 2009
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Secretary
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 23rd day of __October ,2014 .
(Date Contract Signed)
4. _ Thomas A. Schenk is the duly elected Secretary
(Name of Contract Signatory) ' (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.
(Signature of thé Elected Officer)
D. Sue Foley

STATE OF _NEW YORK

Assistant Secretary - Finance
County of _ROCKLAND

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __23rd  day of _October, 2014

By _D. Sue Foley, Assistant Secretary - Finance
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)
Ui

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)
Tahnia Wilson
(NOTARY SEAL) : Notary Public State of New York
No. 01WI6213088
Qualified in Rockland County
Commission Expires: _ November 2, 2017 Commission Expires November 2, 2017

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seat

July 1, 2005
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DOING THE MOST GOOD"

The Salvation Army

Mission Statement

The Salvation Army, an international movement, is an evangelical
part of the universal Christian church. Its message is based on
the Bible. Its ministry is motivéted by the love of God. Its
mission is to preach the gospel of Jesus Christ and to meet

human needs in His name without discrimination.



The Salvation Army
Carey House - Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Schedule of Income
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2014

INCOME

Contributions
Unrestricted Donations
Restricted Donations
Seasonal Appeals
Collections
Associated Organizations
Thrift Store Appropriation
United Way Allocation
Public Funds

Total Public Support

Other Revenue
Program Service Fees
War Cry Sales
Other Sales
Investment Income

Unrestricted
Restricted
Miscellaneous

Total Other Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

$7,879
950
1,025
3,795

29,740
49,543

SCHEDULE A.

$92,932

23,306

$116,238




The Salvation Army
Carey House - Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Schedule of Expenditures
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2014

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Related Expenses

SCHEDULE B.

Staff Compensation $53,538
Fringe Benefits 20,211
Payroll Taxes 5,564
Total Salaries and Related Expenses
Supplies, Program and Services
Professional Fees 2,696
Education, Recreation, Craft Supp. 0
Food Purchased 0
Uniforms 0
Office Supplies 1,521
Telephone 3,137
Postage, Shipping 42
Rent 0
Utilities 21,783
Property Upkeep & Repairs 5,295
Janitorial Supplies 3,418
Furnishings & Equipment 1,623
Printed Materials 0
War Cry Costs 0
Other Transportation & Meals 0
Vehicle Operating Costs 223
Vehicle Insurance 0
Vehicle Replacement 0
Special Meetings 67
Conferences 130
Financial Assistance Regular 268
Financial Assistance Seasonal/Disaster 0
Organization Membership Costs 0
Educational Grants 0
Miscellaneous 1,212

Total Supplies,Program and Services
Support Payments to Supervisory Headquarters
Total Expenses

$79,313

41,415
10,524

$131,252




The Salvation Army
Carey House - Laconia, NH Corps Community Center

Statement of Support, Revenue and Expense

And Change in Fund Balance
Corps Operating Account
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2014

INCOME

Public Support and Revenue
Pubiic Support Received Directly
Contributions

Total Received Directly

Public Support Received Indirectly
Public Funds
United Way Allocation

Total Received Indirectly

Other Revenue
Program Service Fees
Sales to Public
investment Income
Miscellaneous

Total Other Revenue
Total Public Support and Revenue
EXPENSE

Program and Supporting Services
Salaries and Related Expenses
Other Operating Expenses
Support Payment to

Supervisory Headquarters

Total Expenses

$13,649

49,543

29,740

12,306

11,000

79,313
41,415

10,524

(Expenses in Excess of Public Support and Revenue)

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

EXHIBIT A.

$13,649

79,283

23,306

116,238

131,252

-15,014
10,544

-$4,470



The Salvation Army

Carey House - Laconia, NH Corps Community Center

Combined Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended
September 30, 2014

Current Assets

Cash in Bank-Operating Account
Custodian Account
Petty Cash

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Fund Balances
Operating Account

Custodian Fund

Band

Board Designated Interest
Older Ministries
Adventure Corps/Scouts
Boys Club

Girl Guards

Lord's Dollar

Memorials

Men's Fellowship
Sunbeams
Torchbearers/Teens
Women's Minstries
Future Officer's Fellowship
Youth Group

Total Custodian Fund
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

ASSETS

$85

262

EXHIBIT B.

$347

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$4,817

-4,470

-4,470

$347




Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

The Salvation Army
Carey House - Laconia, NH Corps Community Center
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2014

EXHIBIT C.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
This Corps Community Center is an operating segment of the Northern New England Division of

The Salvation Army, and as such does not record fixed assets or acquisitions on the balance
sheet. The accounting and recording of same is part of the Corporate Headquarters in New York.

FUNDED DEPRECIATION

Vehicles are depreciated over a four year period, with payments of same made to the Divisional
Headquarters and held in reserve until replacement. The vehicle replacement account represents
this depreciation only.

INVESTMENT iINCOME

The restricted and unrestricted investment revenues reflected in Exhibit A of the Financial
Statements are derived from trust funds willed to The Salvation Army. The restricted revenues
are disbursed according to the provisions of the trust instrument and are controlled by Territorial
Headquarters in New York. The unrestricted revenues are also controlied by the Territorial
Headquarters and are disbursed according to the need of certain programs sponsored by The
Salvation Army.



EXHIBIT "A"
The Salvation Army
Carey House - Laconia, NH Corps Community Center

ProForma Form 990
Return of Organization Exempt from Tax Form

"The Salvation Army in the United States is composed of a National Headquarters, four Territories,
each separately incorporated, and multiple local units within each Territory. As a church, The Salvation
Army is not required by the IRS to file the Form 990. However, to qualify to receive funding from
certain sources, some local units provide information to funding agencies by completing a Form 990

pro forma. Preparing such a pro forma does not constitute a voluntary filing of Form 990. As such,
providing the pro forma does not waive The Salvation Army's exemption from the requirement to file
the Form 990 return. Therefore, for example, the pro forma return provided to the Combined Federal
Campaign contains the following statement:

DISCLAIMER

The Salvation Army is not required to file IRS Form 990. Therefore, this form is submitted under protest,
in compliance with the ruling of CFC opinion 88-1 which states:

"Organizations that are not required to file IRS Form 990 with the IRS must nonetheless submit a
completed copy of that form with their application for national or local eligibility."

Since the pro form Form 990 return is provided in the situations and for the purposes described above

by local units of The Salvation Army, it is an abbreviated version designed to provide relevant information
about the local unit's operations and use of resources. Therefore, only certain applicable parts of the core
form that identify the local unit have been completed. Finally, depending on the context, certain parts of
the core form contains information relating to either the territory, the local unit, or in some cases,

a combination of both."



“Submitted Subject to the Attached Disclaimer.”

| OMB No. 1545-0047

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the internal Revenue Code {except private foundations)
» Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as it may be made pubilic.

2013

Open to Public

Department of the Treasury .

Internal Revenue Service ~_| » Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginnin October 1 2013, and ending September 30 ,20 14

B Check if applicable: §C Name of organization The Salvation Army Laconia New Hampshire Carey House D Employer identification number

D Address change Doing Business As 13-5562351

D Name change Number and street {or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number

[0 initial return 177 Union Ave 603-524-1834

E] Terminated City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

[ Amended retum  JLaconia, New Hampshire 03246 G Gross receipts $ 116238

[J Application pending | F Name and address of principal officer: Captains Scott & Nora McNeil Hfa} Is this a group retum for subordinates? [dves No
177 Union Ave, Laconia, New Hampshire 03246 H{b} Are all subordinates included? Oves TNo

1 Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) L so11¢) ) « (insert no.) [J asa7@yn) or [ 507 If *No,” attach a list. (see instructions)

J__Website: »  www.Laconia.SalvationArmyNH.orq H(c) Group exemption number »

K Form of organization: Corporation [:| Trust [] Association E] Other » l L Year of formation: 1865 I M State of legal domicile: NY

Summary

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: The Salvation Army's mission is to preach the
§ gospel of Jesus Christ and meet human need in his name without discrimination.
]
S 2  Check this box » [Jif the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
&1 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1a) . e 3 9
‘: 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1b) . . . . 4
2| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 1
:,-;-_, 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) .. P 6 57
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C) line 12 e e e 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,line34 . . . . . . . . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part Vill, line1h) . . . . . . . . . . . . 127792 92932
g 9 Program service revenue (Part Viil, line2g) . . . e e 15840 12306
% | 10 Investment income (Part Vill, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) .o
111 Other revenue (Part VilI, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) . . . 10000 11000
12  Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vlii, column (A}, line 12) 153632 116238
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . . . . . 20000 268
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) R
@ 16  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 73944 79313
2 | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) 20 2696
8 b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »
o 17  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) . . . . . 48595 48975
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 145859 131252
19  Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline12 . . . . . . . . 7773 -15014
5 § Beginning of Current Year End of Year
§§ 20 Totalassets(PartX,line16) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 15729 347
s‘,‘é 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line26) . . . . . . T, 5185 4817
Z2| 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from ||ne 20 L 10544 -4470

m Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and beiief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here
Type or print name and title
. Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date Check i PTIN
al
Preparer self-employed
Use Only Firm's name » Eirm's EIN »
Firm's address » Phone no.
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . [JYes[INo

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 (2013)



“Submitted Subject to the Attached Disclaimer.”

Form 980 (2013) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains aresponse ornoteto any lineinthisPatVIl . . . . . . . . . . . . . O
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization'’s tax year.

* List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

* List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of “key employee.”

* List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

» List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

* List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.
[] Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

€)
Position
B! (s}
*) B (do not check more than one ) € _(F)
Name and Title Average | pox, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | officer and a director/irustes) | SOmpensation compensation from amount of
Iweek (list any ezl sl ol=Te=T from related other
hoursfor | 813 | 2| &| 3&)| 2 the organizations compensation
related 3E E 8lal & g g organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations| 8 5151 3 "§ | T [w-2/1099-MiSC) organization
below dotted| R 5 | B g]"8 and related
line) a|z b3 ° organizations
[zl =}
g £
A
(1) Captain Stephen Warren
40 v 35473 11747
(2) captain Scott McNeil
40 v 8223 11747

(3) See attached Listing of Corporate Trustees
and Officers for the names and titles of the 9

(4) voting members of the governing body as
indicated on Part |, Line 3

)

6

4]

@

9)

(109)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(19

Form 990 (2013)



“Submitted Subject to the Attached Disclaimer.”

Form 990 (2013) Page 9
A} Statement of Revenue
Check if Sch m. . .. .. .. .. ...0
Seube e (A) (B) (€) (D)

i Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections

S revenue 512-514
‘3 % a s - EEE
g 2| b Membershipdues . . . . | 1b -
,,,—E ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . [ 1c =
55 d Related organizations . . . | 1d -
QE e Government grants (contributions) | 1e 49543} gt -
-3 f Al other contributions, gifts, grants, = - =
gg" and similar amounts not included above | 1f 13649 S a .
£ o] @ Noncashcontributions included in fines 1a-1:$
38| h Total.Addlinesta-1f . . . . . . . . . » :
3 Business Code o
] 2a
2 b
g ¢
§| d
(7]
s e
'ga f Al other program service revenue .
o g Total. Addlines2a-2f . . . . . . . . . » 12306
3 investment income (including dividends, interest,
and other similaramounts) . . . . . . . P
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 Royalties e . >
() Real (i)} Personal

6a Gross rents
b Less: rental expenses

¢ Rental income or (foss)
d Netrentalincomeor(loss) . . . . . . . »
7a  Gross amount from saies of (i) Securities (ii) Other

assets other than inventory
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses
¢ Gain or (loss) .
d Net gain or (loss)

g 8a Gross income from fundraising

g events (not including$

&’ of contributions reported on line 1c).

5 SeePartiV,line18 . . . . . 3
g b less:directexpenses . . . . b

¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events
9a Gross income from gaming activities.

SeePartlV,line19 . . . . . 2

b Less:directexpenses . . . . b

¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities

10a Gross sales of inventory, less

returnsand allowances . . . g
b Less:costofgoodssold . . . b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from sales of inventory . . »
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a
b
c
d All other revenue .
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d . 11000

vy

12 Total revenue. See instructions. 116238

Form 990 (2013)



“Submitted Subject to the Attached Disclaimer.”

Form 990 (2013) Page 10
Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . .. £J
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, (A) o B) " (C) ¢ and ; d(D)is,n
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIIL. Totel expenses apenses | genre expenses oxponses.
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and e o
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. See Part IV, line 22 . 268 268
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 .
4  Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees .o 4900 4312 392 196
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4358(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7  Other salaries and wages . 48638 42801 3891 1946
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (mclude
section 401(k) and 403{b) employer contributions) 2554 2248 204 102
9 Other employee benefits . 17657 15538 1413 706
10  Payroll taxes . . 5564 4896 445 223
11 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management
b Legal
¢ Accounting
d Lobbying . .
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV Ime 17 2696 2696
f Investment management fees
g Other. (if line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0)) .
12  Adbvertising and promotion
13 Office expenses 1563 1375 125 63
14  Information technology 3137 2761 251 125
15 Royalties .
16 Occupancy 30496 26836 2440 1220
17  Travel .
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 197 173 16 8
20  Interest o
21 Payments to affiliates . 10524 9261 842 421
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon
23 Insurance . e e e e
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above {(List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.) 1 ‘
a Vehicle 223 196 18 9
b Misc 2835 2495 227 113
c
d
e All other expenses
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 131252 113160 10264 7828
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here » [} if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) .o

Form 990 (2013)
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«Submitted Subject to the Attached Disclaimer.

Form 990 (2013)
a9 4l Reconciliation of Net Assets

Page 12

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

CWOO~NDOG &HWON -

—h

1P Ul Financial Statements and Reportmg

Total revenue (must equal Part Viil, column (A), line 12) . 1

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . 3

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X Irne 33 column (A)) 4
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
Donated services and use of facilities 6
Investment expenses . 7
Prior period adjustments . . . 8
Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explaln in Schedule O) . 9
Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 {must equal Part X Ilne

33, column (B)) . 10

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XIi .

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [] Cash Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in
Schedule O.

Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[ Separate basis  []Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[ Separate basis  [] Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337. .

If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audl'(s’> If the orgamzatlon drd not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits.

3a v

3b

Form 990 (2013)
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DIVISIONAL COMMANDERS
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THE SALVATION ARMY

FOUNDED IN 1865 BY WILLIAM AND CATHERINE BOOTH

HEART TO GOD; HAND TO MAN

PO BOX 326
177 UNION AVENUE
LACONIA, NH 03246
TELEPHONE (603)524-1834
FAX (603) 524-8164
www.use.salvationarmy.org/laconia

Advisory Board Roster
Laconia, New Hampshire
2014

CMr: Russell SBeane

Ctrs:. Kathy &atvin

M. OBally Garver

CMr. Mark Qadiian

ClMr: Rene Gilbert

Chrs. Adison O hymot

SIConorable W illard Martin FIS
CMrs. Nangy Momill

M. Soarme " Rearce-Mitchell

CMr. CMike " Rersson

BARRY C SWANSON
TERRITORIAL COMMANDER

SCOTT A. MCNEIL

NORA A, MCNEIL
CORPS OFFICERS



NAME

David E. Jeffrey

Barry C. Swanson

Wiiliam A. Bamford 1|

Donald W. Lance

Glenn C. Bloomfield

Thomas O. Henson

Thomas A. Schenk

Richard D. Allen

Jorge E. Diaz

D. Sue Foley

Steven M. Howard

Kenneth W. Maynor

Janice A. Howard

As of 1July2014
(EXADPL)

THE SALVATION ARMY
a New York Corporation

Executive Address: 440 West Nyack Road

West Nyack, New York 10994-0635

Listing of Corporate Trustees and Officers

TITLE

Chairman of the Board, Trustee

‘President, Trustee

Vice President, Trustee

Treasurer, Trustee

First Assistant Treasurer, Trustee

Second Assistant Treasurer

Secretary, Trustee

Assistant Secretary - Legal

Assistant Secretary - Property

Assistant Secretary - Finance

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee



BARRY C SWANSON
TERRITORIAL COMMANDER

ANDRE COX
GENERAL

JAMES LABOSSIERE SCOTT A. MCNEIL

PATRICIA LABOSSIERE ¢ NORA A, MCNEIL
DIVISIONAL COMMANDERS CORPS OFFICERS

THE SALVATION ARMY

FOUNDED IN 1865 BY WILLIAM AND CATHERINE BOOTH

HEART TO GOD; HAND TO MAN

PO BOX 326
177 UNION AVENUE
LACONIA, NH 03246
TELEPHONE {603)524-1834
FAX (603) 524-8164
www.use.salvationarmy.org/laconia

November 5, 2014

Resume Summary for Key Administrative Personnel

Captains Scott and Nora McNeil have been appointed as the Corps
Commanding Officers of the Laconia, NH Salvation Army in June of 2014. In
their role as Commanding Officers, they are responsible for all aspects of
The Salvation Army mission and service.

Captains Scott and Nora McNeil have been Salvation Army officers for more
than seven year in Massachusetts. Prior to their appointment in Salem,
Massachusetts they have served as Corps Officers in the Lawrence,
Massachusetts as well. Both Scott and Nora McNeil graduated from The
Salvation Army College for Officers in Suffern, New York and were ordained
and commissioned to lifelong service in The Salvation Army.



Contractor Name: The Salvation Army (Carey House)

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Scott Mc¢ Neil Captain $20,000 0 0

Nora Mc Neil Captain $20,000 0 0




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Fax: 603-271-56139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate
Commissioner

March 25, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House —
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 » /’ §o ’A o Cﬁ@/‘ 3/

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to enter into retroactive agreements with the
vendors listed below to provide homeless shelter operations activities to assist homeless
individuals through the Emergency Solutions Grant program in an amount not to exceed
$175,841 retroactive to January 1, 2014 upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
through December 31, 2014.

Vendor Vendor Location Total
Number

Cross Roads House, Inc. 166570 - B0OO1 Portsmouth $34,170
My Friend’s Place 156274 - BOO1 Dover $36,560
The Salvation Army (Carey House) 177627 — BOO1 Laconia $33,248
The Salvation Army (McKenna House) 177627 — BO03 Concord $39,351
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. | 177195 - BO09 Berlin $32,512

Total $175,841

Funds are available in the following accounts with the ability to adjust encumbrances in
each of the State Fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING -
SHELTER PROGRAM

Please see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the grant term is based on a calendar year,
however the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has not yet issued the
notice of grant awards for this contract. The New Hampshire Consolidated Plan stipulates that
contractual funding coincide with the current grant calendar year. The U.S. Department of
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Housing and Urban Development grant regulations stipulate that funds be obligated to vendors
within 60 days of the Department receiving formal notification of the award amounts.

This package includes 5 of 14 retroactive agreements and represents $175,841 of a
total of $469,735 anticipated to be available to assure compliance with U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development requirements. The Council has already approved seven of
the 14 contracts and two more will be brought forward at a later meeting. These agreements
allocate a portion of the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
funds, formerly known as the Stewart B. McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program funds,
provided to New Hampshire by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Four of the vendors will utilize Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act and matching funds pursuant to their agreements for homeless shelter operations
activities that include costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, and supplies. Additionally, Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. will utilize some funds for prevention/intervention
services such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with foreclosure notice, utilities with
disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent homelessness. Such activities help negate
instances where households are threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated that
these contractors will serve approximately 4,200 individuals statewide.

The Department has administered this program for 26 previous rounds of federal
funding. A Request for Proposal was issued at the annual New Hampshire Homeless Provider
and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012 and posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services’ website. The Request for Proposal required
potential bidders submit proposals for funding for state fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Funding is
awarded based on anticipated federal funding. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development historically announces funding levels in the late spring. The Department has not
yet been notified of the funding amounts available for state fiscal year 2015. However, the
Department executed contracts for anticipated funding so that when the federal funds do
become available, vendor access to the funds will allow continuation of services to homeless
individuals without interruption.

Criteria for selection included: proposal includes all elements and is assembled as
required; program design and need for project; use of outcome/performance measures and
outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of resources; local service delivery area
coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach; accurate and timely utilization of
Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and credentials; compliance with
rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and increase in
prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to
submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models
to be evaluated independently. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50
required for funding. (Please see the attached Scoring and Financial detail for additional
information). '

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:
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1) Annual compliance reviews are performed, including the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers,
including various demographic information reports, as well as income and expense reports,
including match dollars.

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be
required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System will be the
primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded
through these contracts.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless people may not be available in local
communities, resulting in a statewide increase in demand for these services on the local
welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local
shelter in places not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities.
This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and
will be cut off from basic supports for shelter, health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs
would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agencies would have to close their doors
or drastically reduce staff.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of funds: 100% Federal

In the event that Federal funds became no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Approved bya &\& /

Nlcholas A. Toum
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
The Bridge House, Inc. (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $15,031
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $15,031
Sub-total $30,062

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,085
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,085
Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $6,916
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $6,916
Sub-total $13,832
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $17,982
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $17,982
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,052.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $9,052.50
Sub-total $18,105
Family Promise of Greater Nashua, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
d/b/a Anne-Marie House
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $4,623
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $4,623
Sub-total $9,246




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,767
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,767
Sub-total $41,534
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,280
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $18,280
Sub-total $36,560
Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $21,278.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $21,278.50
Sub-total $42,557
New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $20,659.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $20,659.50
Sub-total $41,319
The Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $19,675.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $19,675.50
| Sub-total $39,351
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,624
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,624
Sub-total $33,248




Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,637.50
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $30,637.50
Sub-total $61,275
Tri-County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)
State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $16,256
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $16,256
Sub-total $32,512
Total $469,735 |




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The
Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ website.

Evaluation HMIS Total
Shelter Programs Score Utilization Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 3 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont  [80.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act
(HEARTH), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since HEARTH
funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget, proposals
that qualified for HEARTH funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for
funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposals received, the reviewers were organized
into twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and
scores. The review committee teams included the following individuals:

o Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human
Services Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a
Community Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery
Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State
Continuum of Care

o Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner |, Office of Consumer and Family
Affairs, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care
Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Division of Public Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD
Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator,
American Friends Service Committee

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness
Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc

Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Business Systems Analyst I, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
and Human Services

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord's First Congregational Church

Janine A Lesser, BS, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy
Unit, Division of Family Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
Attorney General’s Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of cormections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human
Potential, formerly Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department
of Corrections

Karen Orsini, MSN, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

Linda J Parker, BS, CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community
Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bernadette Pelczar, BA, MSW, Social Worker
Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families,
NH Department of Health and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Developmental Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services



e Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug
and Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the
Homeless Program

e Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for
PeaceWorks New Hampshire, LLC

e Kiristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH
Department of Corrections

e Sally Varney, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human
Services

¢ Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

e Donna Walker, BBA, MBA, Business Administrator IV, Bureau of
Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human
Service Director, Town of Salem

HEARTH funds were awarded to the Operations budgets of emergency
homeless shelter programs to meet federal requirements for the utilization of
these funds. In order to assure that HEARTH funds were available to all
programs providing emergency shelter, the following formula was utilized:

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars; and

e For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of
the Operations budget line was supported through HEARTH dollars.



Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

The Salvation Army

1.4  Contractor Address

177 Union Avenue

(Carey House) Laconia, NH 03246
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number

(603) 528-8086

OT0-032-79Z7-102-0731
Baiggaéggfﬂ 3010-7927

December 31, 2014 $33,248.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin
‘4“?7‘\

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contract

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Richard D. Allen, Assistant Secretary - Legal

1.13 Awgw“iiﬂ@?ment: State of_N.Y., County of RockJand
2/1112014
On

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

N

1.13.1

Signaturepf Yotary Public or Justice of the Peace
{Seal] &/\, L\J#"

1.13.2  Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Tahnia Wilson, Notary Public State of New York, No. 01W16213088
Qualified in Rockland County, Commission Expires November 2, 2017

1.14 State Agency Signatu

1.15  Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
/77/7'/07 2 Coo .
Coc, M (A N eme

gl L
1.16 Approval bfu‘ﬁe N.H. Departrfent ¢f Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

ww/:ﬁal

By: / On: -5y~ (/
1.18 Approval by the GoYernor and Executive Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RS A 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. ,

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: _~ @E;

Date: __02/11/2014



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination,
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.-H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10, TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Page 3 of 4

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of} the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: 2 § i
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10} days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY, In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Apgreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials:
Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Emergency Solutions Grant

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Emergency Services
Grant. The State has applied for the Emergency Services Grant and will continue to
perform due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no
representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for
costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the
State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the Emergency Services Grant.

2. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:

2.1 Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to
comply with the program narrative, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, for Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved
by the Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, Office of Human Services,
Department of Health and Human Services, hereafter referred to as the State.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right, following consultation with the Contractor, to
modify service priorities and expenditure requirements for the funds provided under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2.3 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

2.4 The Contractor shall provide semiannual and annual report information data by service
modality describing the number of unduplicated cases served, units of services
rendered, and staff required to provide the service, as may be required by the State.
Monthly reports may be required at the discretion of the State.

2.5 All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the
New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required
for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the
following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

2.6 Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the State.

3. SERVICES:

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will
provide services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

CAJDHHS/100213 Exhibit A Conlracior initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

3.1 Emergency Solutions Grant Program, 24 CFR part 576

3.2 Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency
Solutions Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.

O Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing,
employment counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing
other community services, and staff salaries and benefits.

& Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, and supplies.

CA/DHRS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Inibals _ ¢ ;E 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2014: not to exceed $33,248.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
Operating expenses: $33,248.00

Total program amount: $33,248.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds
provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period
specified above.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports
which identify the status of the Services performed, the outiook for completion of the
remaining services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to
be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end
of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2.2. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within

) ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contraclor Initials %_
P
age 1of3 owe02/NI2014



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to
exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. The State agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in
accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions
of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency Solutions Grants Program; HEARTH Act and all
applicable regulations.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the
conclusion of each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In
no event shall the funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of
the General Provisions. Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the
Contractor may invoice for balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8
based on documentation of expenditures.

3.4. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and
all payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of
expense which are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of
actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disailowed expenditures,
inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. |f the State disallows costs for which
payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded
to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture pursuant to 24
CFR Subsection 576.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be
transferred between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written
authorization from the State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be
solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures
may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this
Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the
Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to
incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior
written authorization from the State.

CAIDHNHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials ﬁ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2014:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM HEARTH Funds Match
Operations $33,248.00 $33,248.00
Shelter operational costs such
as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies
TOTALS $33,248.00 $33,248.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $66,496.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require,

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that alf applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to filt out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individua! applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ; ]%
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Defauit hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ail costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials ﬁv
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shal!
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materiais
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shal! be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with

greater expertise to perform certain heaith care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying ali subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federa! laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials %
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in pan,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 Inthe event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State refated to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuais
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name:  The Salvation Army

02/11/2014
Date

Title:

Assistant Secretary - Legal
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